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FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LTD.

VISION & MISSION

To provide sufficient handling & storage facilities for perishables in India, with a view to
reduce/control wastages of perishable food products in India.

Corporate Objectives

* Eliminating wastage of perishable food products by making available state of the art
Cold supply Chain [nfrastructure at reasonable cost in the country, thereby saving
precious food products & foreign exchange for the country.

* To be a customer focused, performance driven, result oriented organization, focused
on providing value for money to its customers.

* To maximize productive utilization of resources, deliver high quality services and to
be recognized for setting the standards for excellence.

* To look constantly for new and better ways to provide innovative services. It will aim
for customer convenience and satisfaction, learn from its competitors and constantly
strive for excellence.

* To set measurable performance goals to support the objectives and mission of the
organization and work as a professional, competent and dedicated team for the
organization to achieve excellence in all areas of business and operations.

* To follow highest standards of business ethics and add social value for the community
at large by discharging social obligations as a responsible corporate entity.

* To maintain absolute integrity, honesty, transparency and fair-play in all its official
dealings and strive to maintain high standards of ethics.
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FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of CONCOR)
Chairman'’s Address

Dear Shareholders,

I have great pleasure in welcoming you to this 13" Annual General Meeting of
your Company. The Audited Annual Accounts of the Company for the period
ended 31% March, 2018, Directors’ Report incorporating remarks/comments of
Statutory Auditor, Secretarial Auditor and Comptrofler & Auditor General of India
along-with replies thereto wherever required and Auditors’ Report, have already

been circulated to you and with your permission, I take them as read.

Keeping in view the losses incurred by FHEL year after year despite
implementation of various strategic measures, Company had moved to leasing
model for CA Chambers in the year 2015-16 from earlier business of

procurement, storage and selling of apples.

However, due to exceptionally poor apple crop in 2017-18, demand for CA
(Controlied Atmosphere) store has been meager or negligible. No operation was
carried out in the CA facility during EY 2017-18. Operating turnover of your
Company declined from Rs. 0.467 Cr. in F/Y 2016-17 to Rs. 0.012 Cr. in FfY
2017-18. As on 31.03.2018, accumulated losses of the company stood at Rs.
164.19 Cr.

There has been considerable change in business scenario with implementation of
Goods & Service Tax (GST) and a number of measures taken to boost Logistics
especially Agri-logistics. A number of Entrepreneurs have been approaching FHEL
highlighting the need for customized requirements and storage of smaller
quantities in cartons/pailets, thus making the leasing of the facility more
attractive with the possibility of making the functioning of the facility viable.
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Keeping in view the changed business dynamics, a new Business plan has been
approved in March 2018 for Re-Engineering of the facility at Rai, Sonipat and
developing it as an Agri-Logistics Centre in two phases i. e. Phase I for
modification of existing facility at a cost of Rs. 13.45 Cr. to cater to the specific
requirements of clients based on detailed market analysis and projected business
volumes and Phase II with an investment of Rs. 30.86 Cr, for buildihg a 2000 MT
of Deep Freeze facility and 3000 sq mtrs. of Ancilliary High Rise Storage as a
feeder facility for the existing facility.

For the purpose of implementation of Phase I at this stage, CONCOR (Holding
Company), has made an Equity infusion of Rs. 13.45 Cr. in April 2018, by
subscription of Rights issue of 1,34,50,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, after
increase of Authorized Share Capital of FHEL from Rs. 150 Cr. to Rs. 200 Cr on
26.03.2018.

Further, Steps are being taken for implementation of the Plan by way of carrying
out modification in the existing facility like adding Mezzanine fioors/Ratking
system in chambers, replacing doors etc., to cater to a wide range of clients.

The implementation is being monitored closely.

With respect to Corporate Governance, 1 would like to mention that your
Company is following almost all the guidelines issued by Department of Public
Enterprises.

In conciusion, T would like to extend my sincere thanks and deep gratitude to the
esteemed Shareholders, Board of Directors and Auditors’ for their valuable
support, advice and guidance.

Thanking you, . Eaé e
Place : New Delhi (V. Kalyana Rama)
Date :20.09.2018 Chairman
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FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED (FHEL)
(A wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR)
Directors’ Report

To the shareholders

Your Directors are pleased to present their report on the business and operations of the
Company together with the Audited Accounts for the financial year ending 31% March, 2018.

CONTROLLED ATMOSPHERE (CA) STORE OPERATION & MARKETING REVIEW

In order to increase the shelf life of fruits and vegetables produced in the Country,
Company has a Controlled Atmosphere (CA) Store consisting of three units of 4000 MT
capacity each at Rai, Sonepat with total capacity of 12000 MT appx.

Keeping in view the losses incurred by FHEL year after year despite implementation of
various strategic measures, Company had moved to leasing mode! for CA Chambers in
the year 2015-16 from earlier business of procurement, storage and selling of apples.

However, due to exceptionaily poor apple crop in 2017-18, demand for CA (Controlled
Atmosphere) store has been meager or negligible. No operation was carried out in the
CA facility during FY 2017-18.

RE-ENGINEERING OF CA FACILITY

RO N s S

There has been considerable change in business scenario with implementation of
Goods & Service Tax (GST) and a number of measures taken to boost Logistics
especially Agri-logistics. A number of Entrepreneurs have been approaching FHEL
highlighting the need for customized requirements and storage of smaller
quantities in cartons/pallets, thus making the leasing of the facility more
attractive with the possibility of making the functioning of the facility viable.

Keeping in view the changed business dynamics, a new Business plan has been
approved in March 2018 for Re-Engineering of the facility at Rai, Sonipat and
developing it as an Agri-Logistics Centre in two phases i. e. Phase I for
modification of existing facility at a cost of Rs. 13.45 Cr. to cater to the specific
requirements of clients based on detailed market analysis and projected business
volumes and Phase II with an investment of Rs. 30.86 Cr. for building a 2000 MT
of Deep Freeze facility and 3000 sq mtrs. of Ancilliary High Rise Storage as a
feeder facility for the existing facility.

For the purpose of implementation of Phase 1 at this stage, CONCOR (Holding
Company), has made an Equity infusion of Rs., 13.45 Cr. in April 2018, by subscription of
Rights issue of 1,34,50,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, after increase of Authorized
Share Capital of FHEL from Rs. 150 Cr. to Rs. 200 Cr on 26.03.2018.

Page 1 of 8




Further, Steps are being taken for implementation of the Plan by way of carrying
out modification in the existing facility like adding Mezzanine floors/Racking
system in chambers, replacing doors etc., to cater to a wide range of clients.
The implementation is being monitored closely.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year under review, Operating turnover of your Company registered a decline of
97.43% appx. i. e. from Rs. 0.467 Cr. in F/Y 2016-17 to Rs. 0.012 Cr. in F/Y 2017-18. Cost
of Sales decreased by 72.49% appx. from Rs. 2.824 Cr. in FfY 2016-17 to Rs. 0.777 Cr. in
FfY 2017-18. Further, Employee Benefits Expenses, Finance costs and other expenses for
F/Y 2017-18 are Rs. 0.74 Cr., Rs. 2.96 Cr. and Rs. 1.30 Cr., respectively. After providing for
depreciation & amortization expenses amounting to Rs. 5.03 Cr., the Company suffered Net
Loss of Rs. 10.62 Cr. during F/Y 2017-18 as against Net Loss of Rs. 13.66 Cr. during
previous year (2016-17). As on 31.03.2018, accumulated losses of the company stood at Rs.
164.19 Cr,

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Authorized Equity Share Capital of the Company increased from Rs. 150 Cr to Rs.
200 Cr. in March, 2018. Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Equity Share Capital of the
Company remained Rs. 145.67 Cr. during FY 2017-18, CONCOR continues to hold 100%
of the Paid up Equity Share Capital of FHEL, during the financial year 2017-18.

SECURED LOAN
Your Company has not taken any Secured loan during F/Y 2017-18.
UNSECURED LOAN

In order to meet working capital requirement for F/Y 2017-18, your Company entered
into an arrangement with CONCOR (holding company) for sanction of unsecured
working capital loan of Rs. 2.30 Cr. at an interest rate of 8.51% p.a. (reduced to 6.58%
w. e. f. January, 2018) Out of sanctioned working capital loan of Rs. 2.30 Cr., your
Company had drawn a sum of Rs. 1.25 Cr. during F/Y 2017-18 out of which Rs. 0.70 Cr.
was refunded to CONCOR.

As on 31.03.2018, total outstanding loan (unsecured) due to holding Company
(CONCOR) stood at Rs. 36.95 Cr. (inclusive of Rs. 30 Cr. for F/Y 2014-15, Rs. 1.90 Cr.
for F/Y 2015-16, Rs. 4.50 Cr. for F/Y 2016-17 and Rs. 0.55 Cr. for F/Y 2017-18). Apart
from this, Company has interest accrued & due on borrowings of Rs. 15.69 Cr. on
31.03.2018. Rate of Interest was revised from 8.51% p.a. to 6.58% p.a. w. e. f. 1%
January, 2018 on all outstanding loans due to CONCOR.

FIXED DEPOSITS
Your Company has not accepted any deposit from public as defined in Section 73 and 76

of the Companies Act, 2013, during the F/Y ended on 31.03.2018.
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CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED
PARTIES

As per notification dated 5™ June, 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, first and
second proviso to sub-section (1) of Section 188 under Chapter XII of Companies Act,
2013, are not applicable to a Government Company in respect of contracts or
arrangements entered into with any other Government Company.

During the period ended 31% March, 2018, FHEL's related party transactions were with
its holding company CONCOR (A PSU under Ministry of Railways), in ordinary course of
business and on arm’s length basis. The same are reviewed and approved by the Audit
Committee regularly in its meetings.

However, the details of contracts or arrangements or transactions with Related parties
as required under Section 134(3)(h) of Companies Act, 2013, are attached in the
prescribed form.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

As per notification dated June 5, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government companies have been exempted to comply with the provisions of Section
197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules of Chapter XII1. FHEL being a
Government company is not required to include aforesaid information as a part of the
Directors’ Report. However during the period under review, the Company had no
employees of the category falling under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel).

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Human resource management function in the organization is designed to maximize
employee performance and is an employer's strategic objective. During FY 2017-18, 2
Employees retired and 17 Employees were absorbed in CONCOR (Holding company). As
on 31.03.2018, there were 4 regular employees working in FHEL.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Positive IR has been the goal of HR Department. FHEL provides two way
communication, participative culture, open platforms for discussion for ideas and
motivation of the employees.

RESERVATION POLICY
FHEL a wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR, a Central Government Public Sector (PSU),
is following all the Presidential Directives and Guidelines as issued by the Government
from time to time regarding reservation for SCs, STs, OBCs, Physically Handicapped and
Ex-servicemen in letter and spirit. As on 31.03.2018, there were 03-General and 01- SC
employee working in FHEL.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
{PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd. (FHEL) prohibits any kind of act of Sexual Harassment
at work place and included the acts amounting to Sexual Harassment at Workplace in its
Conduct Rules and Certified Standing orders (as certified in 1998) and Discipline &
Appeal Rules so as to prohibit any such Act.

FHEL has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee in the year 2014 to receive and
investigate complaints related to "Sexual harassment at workplace” following the
guidelines issued by Hon'ble Supreme Court of India in "Visakha Vs, State of Rajasthan”.
The committee consists of
four members including one external member who is practicing advocate in Hon'ble High
Court of Punjab & Haryana, Chandigarh. Company Secretary is the Presiding Officer of
the committee.

During the FY 2017-18, no complaint has been received by the Committee.
RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R & D)
No new R & D activities were carried out during the pericd under review.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY CSR) AND SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

Being a loss making entity, FHEL is not mandated to incur any expenditure towards CSR
in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

PARTICULARS RELATING TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

The particulars in respect of Conservation of energy and technology absorption are
detailed in the Annexure.

There is no Foreign Exchange earning or outgo during the Financial year 2017-18.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

FHEL had identified the possible risks & mitigation plans arising in the Key areas of the
Company. Implementation of risk mitigation/management measures, is reviewed by the
Audit Committee and Board periodically.

In order to mitigate the risk of dependence on only one product i.e. Apple, Company is

modifying its chambers and converting some of them into chiller chambers, so that the
facility can cater to range of other products requiring cold storage as well.
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AUDITORS

Being a Government Company, the Comptroller & Auditor General of India appointed
M/s. Anil Ashok & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Delhi as Company’s Statutory
Auditors for the F/Y 2017-18. Statutory Auditor is paid remuneration of Rs 1,08,000/-
plus Service Tax, as fixed by Board of Directors’.

The Statutory Auditors of your Company have given report on the accounts of the
Company for the financial year 2017-18, drawing attention under ‘Emphasis of Matter' in
respect of sundry debtors. Management’s reply to the point raised by Statutory Auditor,
is as under -:

Statutory Auditor’s Remark Management's Reply

Statutory Auditor’s Report -
4.1 Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following
matter in the Notes to the financial
statements

(A) Note 7 to the financial statement in | It is stated that 7 cases are subjudice
respect of sundry debtors there is in legal proceedings.

uncertainty related to the outcome of
the lawsuit filed against various sundry
debtors.

Our opinion is not meodified is respect
of above matter.

The Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General (CRAG) of India on the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended 31.03.2018 have been received vide
letter no. PDA/RC/RPSU/13-07/FHEL/2018-19/55 dated 30.07.2018 mentioning that
nothing significant has come to knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon
or supplement to Statutory Auditors Report. The Report of Statutory Auditor along-with
Comments of C&AG on the financial statements of the Company for F/Y 2017-18, are
placed elsewhere in the Annual Report.

Further, FHEL is not required to maintain Cost Records as specified ufs 148(1) of
Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

In accordance with the Provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there-under,
Company has appointed M/s. Kumar Tripathi & Associates, Company Secretaries as
Secretarial Auditor, who have conducted Secretarial Audit for F/Y 2017-18. Secretarial
Audit Report & Certificate on Corporate Governance are annexed herewith.
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Both in the Secretarial Audit Report and Certificate on Corporate Governance, Secretarial
Auditor has observed that the Company has not appointed the required number of
Independent Directors on the Board as per DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance for
CPSEs and consequential non-compliances there-under,

Reply of the Board on the matter is as under -:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its
notifications dated 5% July, 2017 and 13™ July, 2017 exempted wholly owned subsidiary
company from the requirement of appointing Independent Directors’ on the Board and
constituting Audit Committee & Nomination and Remuneration Committee. In view of
such Amendments in Companies Act, 2013, FHEL is not required to have at least two
Independent Directors on the Board and comply with other related requirements.
Accordingly, CONCOR (holding Company) has requested to Department of Public
Enterprises (DPE) for carrying out necessary amendments in the Corporate Governance
Guidelines to make them in line with amended provisions of Companies Act, 2013.
Response of DPE on the matter is still awaited.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board met 5 (Five) times for transacting business of the Company during the
financial year 2017-18.

Major Gen. (Retd.) Raj Krishan Malhotra Indepe ndent Director ceased to be Director on
account of sudden demise on 16.06.2017. Dr. P. Alli Rani, Director ceased to be director
on 04.10.2017. Shri P. K. Agrawal, Director resigned from Directorship of FHEL on
09.04.2018.

Board placed on record appreciation for valuable services rendered by past Board
members during their term of Directorship in FHEL.

Smt. Sangeeta Ramrakhyani, GGM(HR)/CONCOR was appointed as Director of the
Company w. e. f. 23.01.2018. Further, Shri Rahul Mithal, Director (P & S)/CONCOR was
appointed as Director of FHEL w. e. f. 09.04.2018

The following Directors are on the Board till the date of the Report -:

Shri V. Kalyana Rama, CMD/CONCOR & Chairman/FHEL;

Shri Sanjay Swarup, Director (IM & O)/CONCOR & Director/FHEL;
Shri Rahul Mithal, Director (P & S)/CONCOR & Director/FHEL;
Smt. Sangeeta Ramrakhyani, GGM(HR)/CONCOR & Director/FHEL;
Shri Sanjeev S. Shah, Independent Director/FHEL.

nhwhe

RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS BY ROTATION
In terms of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Sanjay Swarup, Director is liable

to retire by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
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DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

In terms of MCA notification dated 5t July, 2017 inserting Rule 4(2) to Companies
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules. 2014, unlisted wholly owned subsidiary
company, is exempt from the requirement of appointing at least two Independent
Directors on the Board.

Accordingly FHEL, a wholly owned unlisted subsidiary of CONCOR is exempt under the
Provisions of Companies Act, 2013 & Rules made there-under from the requirement of
appointirg minimum two Independent Directors. However, Company has one
Independent Director namely Shri Sanjeev S. Shah, who submitted his disclosure to
Board that he fulfills all the requirements as to qualify for appointment as an
Independent Director under the provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE DIRECTORS’ AND THE BOARD

As required by provisions of Companies Act, 2013, evaluation of performance of
directors including that of Independent Directors’ and the Board is to be carried out
either by the Board or by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by the
Independent Directors. It also requires disclosure of formulated criteria for performance
evaluation in this Report.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, through its notification dated 5 June, 2015 has exempted
Government Companies from these provisions.

However, it may be noted that Appointment of Directors of your Company is done by
holding company CONCOR, a PSU under Ministry of Railways. Minutes of Board level
committees are placed before FHEL's Board. Minutes of Board meetings of FHEL are sent
to CONCOR for placing them before CONCOR’s Board. Evaluation of Board Members is
done by CONCOR as per procedures laid down.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of Companies Act, 2013, Board
confirmed that -:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31% March,
2018, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(i) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as {0
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of
financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year under
review,;
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(i} the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

(iv)  the directors had prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31% March,
2018 on a ‘going concern’ basis;

v) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

(vi)  the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has adopted CONCOR’s Code of Conduct for Board Members & Senior
Management of the Company. Link of the Code of Conduct is available on website of the
Company i.e. www.fhel.co.in.

Based on the affirmation received from Board Members and Key Managerial Personnel, it is

hereby declared that all the members of the Board and Key Managerial Personnel have
affirmed compiliance of Code of Conduct for the financial year ended on March 31%, 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT _DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
REPORT

Report on Corporate Governance and Management Discussion & Analysis, is enclosed and
forms part of Directors’ Report,

ANNUAL RETURN

Extract of Annual Return for the financial year ended on 31.03.2018, is attached in the
prescribed form.

CONCLUSION

Your Company acknowledges the support and understanding extended by Container
Corporation of India Limited, Bankers and Auditors of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sdy-
Place : New Delhi (V. Kalyana Rama)
Date : 21.08.2018 CHAIRMAN
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Annexure to the Directors' Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd. (FHEL) is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Container
Corporation of India Ltd. (CONCOR) to carry on Cold chain business.

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY

FHEL’s mission is to provide sufficient handling and storage facilities for perishables in
India. The Company strives to provide value for money to its customers and fulfill
aspiration of its stakeholders by providing qualitative and efficient services and to conduct
its business according to best principles of good Corporate Governance as indicated by the

disclosures given in the Annexure.

BOARD _OF DIRECTORS

CMD/CONCOR is the ex-officio Part-time Chairman on the Board of FHEL and all other members of Board are
nominated / appointed by CONCOR.

As on 31.03.2018, Board of Directors’ of the Company comprises of Five Part-time Directors including a
Chairman (Ex-officio), one Women Director and one Independent Director.

The Board met five times for transacting business during the financial year 2017- 18 on the following dates -

Board Meeting No. Board Meeting Dates
65 12" May, 2017
66 27" July, 2017
67 30™ Oct., 2017
68 : 23 Jan., 2018
69 26" March, 2018

The Company has adopted CONCOR’s Code of Conduct for Board Members & Senior Management of the
Company. The link of same is available on website of company i.e. www.fhel.co.in.

Based on the affirmation received from Board Members and Key Managerial Personnel, it is hereby declared

that all the members of the Board and Key Managerial Personnel have affirmed compliance of Code of Conduct
for the financial year ended March 31° 2018,
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The Composition of Directors,

|l

are given below -:

attendance at the Board Meetings during the year 2017-18 and the last Annual General Meeting, the number of other directorships, chairmans

hip and committee memberships (as provided)

year.

I No. Category of Directorship Name of Director No. of Atten- No. of Other Committee No. of Other
Board Dance Membership / Chairman- Directorship / Chairmanship
Migs At last Ship
Attended AGM
[{/] Part-time Ex-Officio/Non-
Executive Chairman
I3 Chairman & Managing | Sh. V. Kalyana Rama Five Yes One One Three Two
Director/ CONCOR (DIN : 07201556)
(In Part-time /Non-Executive
Directors
2 Dir. (Finance) /CONCOR Dr. P. Alli Rani* Two Yes Thirteen Four Nine Three
(DIN : 02305257)
EA Director (Dom. & HRY/CONCOR | Shri P. K. Agrawal Five Yes Four Two Four Nil
(DIN 07557080)
4. Dir. (IM & Ops) /CONCOR Sh. Sanjay Swarup Five Yes Four Nil Three Nil
(DIN : 05159435)
5 GGM (HR)/CONCOR Ms. Sangeeta Ramnralchyani** Twe N.A Nil Ni Nil Nil
(DIN Mo : 0008058303)
i Part-time Non-Executive
Directors (Independent)
6. Director Shn Sanjeev S. Shah Five Yes Four One Four Nil
(DIN : 00323163))
7. Director Maj. Gen. (Retd) Raj Krishan | One N.A Ten Seven Four Nil
Malhotra#
(DTN - 07483272)
* Ceased to be Director w.e.f. 04.10,2017. Details of other Directorship/Chairmanship, Other Committee Membership/Chairmanship are as per disclosures made last year.
o Appointed as Director w, e. . 23.01.2018
# Ceased to be Director on account of sudden demise on 16.06.2017. Details of other Directorship/ Chairmanship, Other Commitree Membership/Chaimanship are as per disclosures made lase
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, following officials are the Key
Managerial Personnel -:

Shri Mohan Lal Arora, Chief Executive Officer;
Shri Umesh Behl, Chief Finance Officer;
Ms. Suman Lata, Company Secretary.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

MCA vide its notifications dated 5% July, 2017 & 13th July, 2017 exempted wholly owned
subsidiary company from the requirement of appointing Independent directors on the Board and
constituting ‘Audit Committee’, respectively. Thus, in accordance with the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there-under as amended from time to time, FHEL being a
wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR is exempt from complying with the provisions of Section
177 of Companies Act, 2013 in respect of constitution of Audit Committee with requisite
composition of Independent Directors and other maiters prescribed there-under.

However, in accordance with DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance, Audit Committee had
been constituted comprised of the following members -:

Shri Sanjeev S. Shah, - Chairman

Maj. Gen. (Retd.) Raj Krishan Malhotora - Member (ceased w.e.f. 16.06.17)
Sh. P.K. Agrawal - Member { w. e. f. 27.07.17)

Dr. P. Alli Rani - Member (ceased w.e.f. 04.10.17)
Sh. Sanjay Swarup - Member { w. e. . 30.10.17)

Ms. Suman Lata, Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee.

The Committce met 4 (Four) times during the financial Year 2017-18 on 12.05.2017, 27.07.2017,
30.10.2017 and 23.01.2018.

The details of the attendance of the members in the Committee meetings held during F/Y 2017-18
are as under -:

S. No. Name of Members No. of Committee
Mectings Attended

1. Shri Sanjeev S. Shah Four

2. Major Gen. (Retd.) Ray Krishan Malhotra One

3. Dr. P. Alli Rani Two

4. Sh. P.K. Agrawal Three

5. Sh. Sanjay Swarup Two

The Committee reviews the Company's Annual / quarterly financial Results before submission to
the Board. The Committee aftempts L0 ensure that decision making in the company is objective
and that there are adequate internal controls to ensure efficient realization of revenue, and due
propriety of expenditure.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notifications dated 5 July, 2017 & 13th July, 2017
exempted wholly owned subsidiary company from the requirement of appointing Independent
directors on the Board and constituting “Nomination and Remuneration Committee’, respectively.
Thus, in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there-under as
amended from time to time, FHEL being a wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR is exempt from
complying with the provisions of Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 in respect of constitution of
Nomination & Remuneration Committee with requisite composition of Independent Directors and
other matters prescribed there-under.

However, in accordance with DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance, FHEL has constituted
Remuneration Committee, comprised of the following members -;

(i) Shri Sanjeev S, Shah - Chairman

(ii) Major Gen. {Retd.) Raj Krishan Malhotra - Member (ceased on 16.06.2017) .
(iii) Shri P. K. Agrawal - Member (w.e.f. 30.10.2017)

(iv) Shri Sanjay Swarup - Member (w.e.f. 30.10.2017)

During the Financial Year 2017-18, No meeting of ‘Remuneration Committee’ was held.

No remuneration is paid to functional Directors of holding Company nominated/appointed by
CONCOR in FHEL. They draw their remuneration from CONCOR as per IDA Pay Scales and
terms & conditions determined by Govt.

Part-time Independent Directors are paid Sitting fee of Rs. 40,000/- for attending each Board and
Audit Committee meeting and Rs. 30,000/- per meeting for attending any other Committee
meeting, apart from reimbursement of expenses for participation in the Board and other meetings.

The details of sitting fee paid during F/Y 2017-18 to Part-time non-executive (Independent)
Directors, for attending meetings of Board of Directors and Committee thereof, are given below -:

S. No. Name of Directors Rs. in Lakhs @ .
1. Shri Sanjeev S. Shah 3.60

2. Late Maj.Gen. (Retd.) Raj Krishan Malhotra 0.80

@ excluding service tax/GST.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

FHEL is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company of CONCOR and its turnover or net worth is less
than 20% of turnover or net worth, respectively of CONCOR (Holding Company). The Company
is following Corporate Governance Guidelines and has One Independent Director of BOD of
CONCOR in its Board, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee. Independent Director is
also designated as the Chairman of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee. The
Company also follows the practice of putting up of Minutes of Board Meetings of FHEL to the
BOD of Holding Company, viz. CONCOR.
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Details of lecation, time and dage of last three AGMs are as under .
AGM Date Location Time
20.09.17 Conference Hall, 11:00 Hrs.
Container Corporation of India Ltd.
(-3, Mathura Road,
New Delhi — 110076

27.07.16 Do 17:00 Hrs..

31.08.15 Do 11:00 Hrs..

An Extra-ordinary General Meeting was held on 26.03.2018 and a Special Resolution was passed
for Alteration of Capital Clause by Increase of Authorized Share Capital of Company from Rs.
150 CT. to Rs. 200 Cr. Also, the Shareholders approved the proposal of issue of fresh 1,34,50,000
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, by FHEL to Container Corporation of India Ltd. (CONCOR) on
Rights basis, for the purpose of implementation of Phase I of Re-engineering Business Plan for
carrying out the modifications in the existing CA facility at Rai, Sonepat, so as 10 cater to the
specific requirements of the clients based on the detailed market analysis and projected business
volumes.

AGM of Current Year

Date : 20" September, 2018

Time : 11 AM.

Venue : Conference Hall,
CONCOR Bhawan,

C-3, Mathura Road,
New Delhi - 110076.

DISCLOSURES

(i) During the year, there was no transaction of material nature with the directors or their
relatives that had potential conflict with the interest of the company.

(i) There were no instances of penalties/strictures imposed on the Company by any statutory
authority due to non-compliance on any matier related to any guidelines issued by
Government during the last three years.

(iii)  In terms of Corporate Governance Guidelines & to adopt best practices therein, the

Company has ‘ Whistle Blower Policy’ in place.
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(iv)

W)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii}

(ix)

()

(xi)

(xii)
(xiii)

(xiv)

Your Company has filed report on Corporate Governance in specified format to
CONCOR (holding company) & DPE within stiputated time.

Compliance with the requirement of these guidelines are detailed in this report.
FHEL has been following Presidential Directives.and Guidelines issued by the Govt. of
India from time to time regarding reservation of SCs, STs, OBCs, Physically

Handicapped & Ex-Servicemen in letter and spirit.

No Expenditure has been debited in the Books of Accounts, which is not for the purpose
of business.

The Company has not incurred any expense which is personal in nature and incurred for
the Board of Directors and Top Management.

Details of Administrative and office expenses as percentage of total expenses -:

Fin.Year Admn. & Office Exp. Total Expenses Percentage of Admn.
{Rs.in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) & Office Expenses
Vis-a-vis Total
Expenses
2017-18 130.23 1080.51 12.05%
2016-17 193.48 1436.71 13.47%

Transactions with related parties as per requirements of Accounting Standards issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are disclosed in relevant notes to the
Balance Sheet of the Company.

The Company has an adequate risk assessment and minimization plan. Certificate of
compliance of applicable laws, is being placed before the Board.

Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI.
No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board.

No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Financial Results : The Annual Report and quarterly un-audited financial results are regularly
posted by the Company on its website.

Annual Report : Annual Report containing inter-alia Audited Annual Accounts, Directors’

Report, Auditors’ Report and other information, is circulated to members and others entitled
thereto. Management Discussion & Analysis report forms a part of the Annual report.
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DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT/APPOINTMENT AT THE FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING
Name Date of Birth | Date of | Qualification | Expertise in specifie | List of | Details m
appointment | s functional areas Other Other
Companies | Committee
in  which | Membershi
Directorsh | p
ip Held
Shri Sanjay Swarup | 01.08.1966 27.09.2016 B. E. (Hons.) | Rich  experience  in Three” Four™*
Electronics & | Railway Operations,
Communicati | Commercial, Safety and L
on from IIT | T. Also have experiise in
Roorkee and | design, operations,
PG Diploma | marketing and
(MBA) in | management of Container
Public Policy | Terminals in India.
&
Management
. from M
Bangalore.
Smt. Sangeeta | 23.04.1967 23.01.2018 MBA,LLB 26 years of rich | NIL NiL
Ramrakhyani experience in  managing
Human Resource matters.
Sh. Rahul Mithal 02.06.1967 09.04.2013 Mech., Clect., | More than 20 years of One* NIL
Engg. experience in varicus key
Graduate, positions  in  Indian
MBA{Fin), Railways. Has a wide
CEng., exposure  of  various
FiMechE aspects of Design and
(UK} Maintenance of Rolling
Stock and  Handling
Equipment and  held
various key assignments
of Operations and
Maintenance  in  the
Railways. In the last 6
years in  CONCOR,
closely associated with the
Planning, Execution and
Monitoring of  various
mega Projects and played
a key role in drafting the
Strategic Plan : Vision
2020 of CONCOR.
~ 1. Container Corporation of India Ltd. 2. SIDCUL CONCOR Infra Company Ltd.. 3. Container Gateway Ltd.
AN Member of (1} Stakeholder Relationship Committee (2) Risk Management Committee (3) Audit & Ethics Committee
and (4) Share Transfer Committee in Container Corporation of India Ltd.
* 1. Container Corporation of India Ltd.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place : New Delhi (V. Kalyana Rama)
Date : 21.08.2018 CHAIRMAN
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industry Structure & Developments :

Food/Agriculture and medical sectors are perhaps most important for the mankind and any
country. Accordingly, Food/Agri Sector is on priority list of present Indian government as
well. In the Agri sector, Fruits and Vegetables segment holds a prominent position. India
is a largest producer of vegetables and second largest producer of fruits in the world, Rs.
2,00,000 crores plus. This in itself is a proof that Fruits and Vegetables sector and
businesses dealing with it hold immense business potential. As per data available, nearly,
18% of the total Fruits and Vegetables production valuing approx. Rs. 36,000 crores plus
perishes every year due to non-availability of appropriate and adequate cold chain
infrastructure in the country. Hence, presents an excellent business opportunity.

Though, Fruits and Vegetables sector has its own challenges. Fruits & Vegetable business
in India is almost entirely unorganized. The farm sizes are small and traditionally growers
either bring their produce to nearby markets/ mandies or send the produce to commission
agents for sale. All the players in the supply chain growers, commission agents, other
middlemen and retailers, are totally unorganized. In recent past a few retail chains are also
moving slowly and are developing formats which can generate profits. Due to the
perishable nature of the commodity, the emphasis on fresh produce in retail chains is
very low and this also is bought from nearby mandies only. Further, the couniry lacks
Cold Chain infrastructure and therefore, generally during the season we see glut in the
market & prices dip to unsustainable levels. All factors mentioned above lead to losses
of produce.

Most of the Cold Store facilities available are suitable and used for Potato Storage. There
is a gap with respect to availability of state of the art Cold Chain Infrastructure &
Knowledge of Storage of other Fruits & Vegetables. This presents both a problem & an
opportunity in this sector.

FHEL is one of the first companies who had invested in specialized CA Store for storage
of apples. With the modifications being carried out we will be able to offer services which
will accommodate traditional storage practices with betier results due to the state of art
technology. Further, encouraged by the suitability of technology and associated benefits,
private sector has seized the opportunity and invested heavily in setting up of CA Stores in
the country. In last 10 years, many facilities have come up in Delhi NCR and in apple
growing states of Himachal Pradesh and Jammu & Kashmir. As on date the estimated CA
Storage capacity in the country is 1.5 lac MT approx. This exponential increase in the
capacity has resulted in rather stunted growth of imported apples, thereby, conserving
precious foreign exchange for the country. Despite all these developments the import of
apples and other fruits, is still increasing exhibiting further growth potential of CA storage
in the country.
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Strength & Weakness :

Strengths -:

a) Fruits & Vegetable market in India is huge (approx. Rs. 2,00,000 Crore +) & high
percentage (i.e. 18%) of perishability holds tremendous business potential for Cold
Chain Infrastructure segment.

b) The increase in the disposable income in hand of the consumer has led to year round
demand for apples and hence larger demand for CA Storage.

c) Being in operation for last 9 years the target customers are reasonably sure of our
storage facility.

d) Being a PSU, the transparent and uniform policies and dealings with all leads to better
confidence among the clients.

€) There is huge latent demand for quality produce, as country is importing large
quantities of Fruits.

f) High Margins in this trade are possible, resulting in higher demand potential.

Weaknesses -:

a) The sector is highly unorganized.
b) Smaller players like growers are not able to reap the benefit of long term CA Storage
due to poor financial risk taking capacity.

c) Lack of storage cost bearing potential of other Fruits and Vegetables and also the
other products like rice, grains etc.

d) Lack of knowledge of Pre-Harvest care and Post-Harvest Management among the
clients leading to lesser interest in storing other products.

e} Retail Chains have not come up as expected and so organized distribution is not
possible.

f) The trade is by & large on credit to stakeholders who do not have bankable credentials.

Opportunity & Threats :
Opportunities -:

a) The proven results of apple storage in CA Stores in last 10 years has led to increased
storage and the number of clients and hence bigger business opportunity.

Page 2 of 7




5.

b) Improved living standards have led to higher and round the year demand of fruits in
the country and hence increased emphasis on long term storage of Fruits and
Vegetables.

¢) Since every year fruit imports is growing impressively, it shows customers are
preferring quality fruit and thus organized business can make a significant
contribution.

Threats -:

@) High Capital cost leading to high rental rates.

b) Big investments made by private sector parties, like commission agents, growers etc,
by making both backward and forward linkages leading to shortening of the supply
chain.

¢) Non- availability of trained Manpower.

d) Increasing competition from Private player who have setup CA store inlast few
years.

¢) Unethical practices of differential pricing adopted by the private player.

f) Nimbleness of private player by adapting to newer conditions like poor crop, glut in
the market, negotiating with big clients etc.

g) Offering bigger basket of services to the clients like free space for packing, extended
credit period to the clients on the basis of their goodwill etc.

Segment-wise or Product-wise Performance

The Company is dealing in logistics of fresh fruits. All the activities of the Company
revolve around this business and all the operations are in India. As such, there is no other
reportable segment defined by Accounting Standard AS-108 related to Operating segment.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy :

The Company has in place well defined roles, responsibilities and authorities for
employees at various levels. This coupled with robust internal MIS systems,
ensures appropriate information flow to facilitate effective monitoring. Adherence
to these processes is monitored through frequent internal audits. The Company
has internal audit system that requires internal audit firm to certify the
appropriateness of internal controls in operation and checks deviations from laid
down procedures. The Internal Auditor is the external firm directly reporting to
management at higher level, thus ensuring its independence. Reports of internal
auditor are reviewed and compliances are ensured.
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10.

11.

12.

SECURED LOANS
Your Company has not taken any Secured loan during F/Y 2017-18.
UNSECURED LOAN

In order to meet working capital requirement for F/Y 2017-18, your Company enterec
into an arrangement with CONCOR (holding company) for sanction of unsecured working
capital loan of Rs. 2.30 Cr. at an interest rate of 8.51% p.a. (reduced to 6.58% w. e. f
January, 2018) Out of sanctioned working capital loan of Rs. 2.30 Cr., your Company hac
drawn a sum of Rs. 1.25 Cr. during F/Y 2017-18 out of which Rs. 0.70 Cr. was refundec
to CONCOR.

As on 31.03.2018, total outstanding loan {unsecured) due to holding Company (CONCOR
stood at Rs. 36.95 Cr. (inclusive of Rs. 30 Cr. for F/Y 2014-15, Rs. 1.90 Cr. for F/Y 2.-
16, Rs. 4.50 Cr. for F/Y 2016-17 and Rs. 0.55 Cr. for F/Y 2017-18). Apart from this
Company has interest accrued & due on borrowings of Rs. 15.69 Cr. on 31.03.2018. Rate
of Interest was revised from 8.51% p.a. to 6.58% p.a. w. e. f. 1% January, 2018 on al
outstanding loans due to CONCOR.

Fixed Assets
(Rs. in Cr.)
Year Ended March 31 2018 2017 %age Incr. (Decr.}
Original Cost of Assets 77.57 79.90 (2.92)
Less : Accumulated Dep.  42.70 39.00 5.49
Net Fixed Assets 34.87 40.90
Inventory
As on 31.03.2018, there was no closing stock of fruits in FHEL. O

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are 13177.42% of operating income of the year,
Cash & Cash Equivalent

The Company keeps available cash in flexi Deposits with Banks.

Income

Income from operations has decreased by 97.43% over F/Y 2016-17.
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13.

14.

15.

16'

17.

Cost of Sales
Cost of Sales has decreased by 72.49% appx. over F/Y 2016-17.

Other Expenses

Other expenses have decreased by 32.69% over F/Y 2016-17.

Employee Remuneration

The Employee Cost has decreased by 57.64% in comparison to last year.

Material Developments in Human Resources, Industrial Relations Front,
inciuding number of people employed

Human resource management function in the organization is designed to maximize
employee performance and is an employer’s strategic objective. During FY 2017-18, 2
Employees retired and 17 Employees were absorbed in CONCOR (Holding company). As
on 31.03.2018, there were 4 regular employees working in FHEL.

Positive IR has been the goal of HR Department. FHEL provides two way
communication, participative culture, open platforms for discussion for ideas and
motivation of the employees.

FHEL a wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR, a Central Government Public Sector (PSU),
is following all the Presidential Directives and Guidelines as issued by the Government
from time to time regarding reservation for SCs, STs, OBCs, Physically Handicapped and
Ex-servicemen in letter and spirit. As on 31.03.2018, there were 03-General and 01- SC
employee working in FHEL.

Environment Protection and Conservation, Technological Conservation,
Renewable Energy Developments, Foreign Exchange Conservation

Environmental protection and conservation, Technological conservation:
The company recognizes the vital importance of providing safe and healthy working
environment and it complies with relevant statutory requirement w.r.t Occupational Health
and safety within India.

The company believes sound environmental management enhances our competitive

strength and benefits by contributing to the overall environment and economical well
being of the communities we serve.
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18.

M

(i)

(iii)

Measures taken for environmental protection and conservation:
The company has facility for rainwater harvesting pits at the CA Store, Rai where all the
rain water collected (on roof top of the store and pavement) is re-charged to the ground.

Air pollution is arrested by proper installation of chimney of DG Sets as per the norms of
Pollution control board. _

Sound pollution of DG Sets is avoided by proper installation of Insulated canopy.

Disposal of sewer is made to the HSIIDC sewer treatment plant, thereby causing no
ground pollution.

Water conservation is achieved by using electronic controllers for avoiding overflow of
442KL water tanks and timely detection and rectification of water leakages.

Foreign Exchange Conservation :

FHEL is one of the first companies who had invested in specialized CA cum Cold Store
for storage of apples. Encouraged by the suitability of technology and associated benefits
private sector has seized the opportunity and invested heavily in setting up of CA Stores in
the country. In last 10 years many facilities have come up in Delhi NCR and in Himachal
Pradesh and Jammu & Kashmir, As on date the estimated CA Storage capacity in the
country is 1.5 lac MT approx. This exponential increase in the capacity has resulted in
rather stunted growth of imported apples, thereby, conserving precious foreign exchange
for the country. Despite all these developments the import of apples is still increasing
exhibiting further growth potential of CA storage in the country.

OGutlook :

India is a huge country and the market for quality fruit & vegetables is growing rapidly.
India is the second largest producer of Fruits & Vegetables in the world and this
business is in excess of nearly Rs. 2,00,000 Crores. Out of this nearly 18% worth of fruit
& vegetables perish due to lack of Cold Chain Infrastructure and lack of organized
distribution and marketing. Hence the opportunity available is huge.

The country is prospering, leading to higher disposable income available in common
man’s hand. This has fueled the demand for healthier food products like Fruits and
Vegetables round the year, leading to higher demand for cold chain infrastructure across
the country.

Increasing trend exhibited by the import of Fruits and Vegetables.
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(iv)

19.

20.

21.

Encouragement to FDIL. The foreign companies are bringing the latest knowhow in the
country thereby creating newer business opportunity.

Risks & Concerns :

FHEL had identified the possible risks arising in the key areas of the company and also
formulated risk management /mitigation measures.

Implementation of risk mitigation/management measures is reviewed by Audit Committee
and Board periodically.

In order to mitigate the risk of dependence on only one product i.e. Apple, Company is
modifying its chambers and converting some of them into chiller chambers, so that the
facility can cater to range of other products requiring cold storage as well.

Corporate Social Responsibili CSR

Being a loss making entity, FHEL is not mandated to incur any expenditure towards CSR in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Directors’ Report and Management Discussion & Analysis,
describing the Company’s objectives, projections and estimates, expectations,
predictions etc. may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of the
applicable laws and regulations. Forward looking statements contained herein are
subject to certain risks and uncertainities that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those reflected in the forward-looking statements. Actual results,
performances or achievements may vary materially from those expressed or
implied due to economic conditions, Government policies and other incidental
factors such as litigation and industrial relation, Readers are cautioned not to
place undue conviction on the forward looking statements. -

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/f-
Place : New Delhi (V. Kalyana Rama)
Date : 21.08.18 CHAIRMAN
Page 7 of 7
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Annexure to Directors’ Report

iy

g

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

@ The details of various measures taken during the year under various heads of
Energy Conservation are as follows -

1. POWER CONSUMPTION __FOR _ REFRIGERATION _ AND __ AIR
CONDITIONING, AUXILIARY UNITS

(a) Energy Saving Screw Compressors and Chillers have been installed and for
refrigeration of CA Store, Processing Area Air Conditioning and Office building.
Also, Variable frequency drives (VFDs) have been used for Refrigeration
compressors, Cooling coil fan motors (312 motors), Air cooling unit fan motors for
Air-conditioning (5! motors), Cooling tower fan motors (6 motors), Carbon dioxide
scrubbers (12 motors).

(b} Cooling towers and Condenser water pumps are operated based on ambient
conditions and actual requirement.

() Optimization of Running of refrigeration compressors and air conditioning system.

(d)  Cleaning and replacement of air filters for air compressors, nitrogen generator
compressors and diesel generators.

2. Lighting :

Energy Conservation in lighting is achieved by use of Energy efficient tube lights for entire
plant, use of CFL’s for office building, use of electronic ballasts, cleaning of light fittings for
optimum utilization of light illumination and lighting voltage optimization. During the year
special care was taken to ensure that lights operated only in areas where it was required. Area
identified and implemented were External lighting, utility area, corridors, sorting hall, packing
hall, machine room, and office building.

3. Heat energy:

Loss/Gain of heat energy in cold room is prevented by optimum thermal insulation thickness for
stores and cladding for pipe lines for minimal heat loss/ gain, cleaning of chilled water tubes,
condenser water tubes and Minimum Infiltration of external Air to Cold Store and processing
area by proper sealing of incoming and exit gates.
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4. Fueloil :

By regular and proper preventive maintenance and calibrations of components of diesel
generators, minimum fuel consumption is ensured. By putting off Nitrogen Generator plant,
forklifts and stacker charging, the load on the DG is reduced and these equipments are run when
power supply is available frotp;‘ electricity Boards.

5. Water for cooling towers and processing :

Water conservation is achieved by use of electronic controllers for avoiding over flow for 442
KL water tanks, re-use of processed water, waste water and fruit washifig water for horticulture
and timely detection and rectification of leakages.

6. Battery chargers for material handling equipments and other purposes:

Chargers are installed with automatic low current charging devices for energy saving.

Impact of measures taken for Energy Conservation

FHEL had changed its business model from procurement, storage & sale of apples to leasing
of CA space. As the crop has been exceptionally poor in 201 7, demand for CA space has been
poor / negligible. Due to this, plant was not operated. However, to conserve resources varied
measures are being taken fo reduce the Electricity consumption. Electricity expenses for FY
2017-18 have been reduced to Rs. 33.36 lakhs from Rs. 69.36 Lakhs of FY 2016-17.

(i1)The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy-: NIL

(iii)The capital investment on energy conservation equipments-; NIL,
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B, Technology absorption

(i)

Efforts - made towards
technology absorption.

T

Due to changed business model of FHEL, no efforts were
made towards technology absorption.

(ii)

The Benefits derived like
product improvement, cost
reduction, product
development, and import
substitution.

Due to changed business model no direct benefits are
derived to the company however storage in CA is helping
the concerned parties/buyers.

(iii)

In case of imported
technology (imported during
the last 3 years reckoned
from the beginning of the
financial year), following
information may be
furnished

(a). Details of Technology
imported

(b). Year of import

(c). Whether the technology
been fully absorbed

(d) If not fully absorbed,
areas where absorption has
not taken place and reasons
therefore.

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

(iv)

Expenditure incurred
onR&D

(i) Capital

(iiy Recurring

(iif) Total

(iv) Total R & D expenditure
as a percentage of turnover

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
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FORM NO.MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2018

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1.| CIN U51909DL2006G01145734
2.| Registration Date 01.02.2006
3.| Name of the Company M/S. FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED (A WHOLLY
- OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF CONTAINER CORPORATION OF
‘ INDIALTD.}
4.| Category/Sub-category | GOVERNMENT COMPANY
of the Company
5. Address of the CONCOR BHAWAN, C - 3, MATHURA ROAD, NEW DELHI -
Registered office & 110076.
contact details Tel.: 011-41673093-96
Fax.:011-41673112
Website : www.fhel.co.in
6.| Whether listed company | NO
7.| Name, Address & NIL
contact details of the
Registrar & Transfer
Agent, if any.

il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10
% or more of the total turnover of the company)

S.No. | Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
products / services Product/service | company
1 N.A. N. A N.A.
III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES - :
S. | NAME AND CIN/GLN HOLDING/ | % of Applicable
NO | ADDRESS OF SUBSIDIA |shares
THE RY heid Section
COMPANY
JASSOCIAT
E
1 ICONTAINER 163011011988 HOLDING CO. |100 2{87)
CORPORATION OF |GOI030915
INDIA LTD.




(IV) SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of
the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

D
e
m
a
t

Physical

Total

%
of
Tot
al
Sha
res

De
ma
t

Physical

Total

%
of
Tot
al

Sha

Tes

gurin

%
Chang
e

the
]
year

A.Promoter s

(1) Indian

a) Individual/
HUF

b} Central Govt

c] State Govt(s)}

d) Bodies Corp.

e) Banks / FI

f) Any other
Government
Company -
Container
Corporation of
India Ltd.

14,56,67,721

14,56,67,721

100

14,56,67,721

14,56,67,721

100

Nil

Sub-total (A)
(1)

14,56,67,721

14,56,67,721

100

14,56,67,721

14,56,67,721

100

Nil

(2) Foreign

a) NRls-
Individu

als

b) Other
individu

als

¢) Bodies
Corporat
e

d) Banks/F
1

e} Any
other

Sub-total (A)
(2)




, Total .

shareholding of
Promoter (A)=
A(1) + A(2)

14,56,67,721

14,56,67,721

100 | -

14,56,67,721

14,56,67,721

100

R

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / Fi

¢) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture

Capital Funds

f) Insurance

Companies

g) Flls

-h) Foreign
Venture Capital

Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2.Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i} Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

it) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

c¢) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)}(2):-

3%




Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)

C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total
{A+B+()

14,56,67,721

14,56,67,721

100

14,56,67,721

14,56,67,721

100

il
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ii) Shareholding of Promoters -

SN | Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the beginning ofthe | Shareholding at the end of the year | % change
 Name year in '
No. of Shares % of | Y%of No.of Shares | 9 of | %of shar eholdi
total | Shares total | Shares ng during
Shares of | Pledged / Shares | Pledged / | tHByear
the encumbe ofthe | encumber
company | red to compa | ed to total
total ny shares
shares
1 CONTAINER 14,56,67,721..| 100 14,56,67,721 100 - NIL
CORPORATION
OF INDIA LTD,
(A PSU UNDER
MINISTRY OF a
RAILWAYS) &
SIXCONCOR
NOMINEES
HOLDING ONE
SHARE EACH

iit} Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

SN | Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
No. of shares | % oftotal | No. of shares | 9% oftotal
shares of shares of the
the company
company
Atthe beginning of the year 14,56,67,721 | 100 14,56,67,721 | 100
Date wise Increase / Decrease in | Nil Nil Nil Nil
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment /transfer / bonus/
. sweat equity etc.)
Atthe end of the year 14,56,67,721 | 100 14,56,67,721 | 100

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SN | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
Shareholders beginning during the
of the year year
No. of shares | % of total | No. of shares | 9% of total
shares of shares of
the the
company company
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Date wise Increase / Decrease in | Nil Nil Nil -1 Nil
Shareholding  during  the year
specifying the reasons: for increase




/decrease {e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):.

At the end of the year (or on the date
of separation, is separated during the

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

year)

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN | Shareholding of each Directors and | Shareholding at the Cumulative
each Key Managerial Rersonnel beginning Shareholding during
of the year the
year
No. of % of total. | No. of % of total
shares shares of | shares shares of
the P the
company i company
1 | Sh. Sanjay Swarup, Director
(As CONCOR Nominee)
At the beginning of the year 1 - 1 -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in | Nil Nil Nil Nil
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc.):
At the end of the year 1 - 1 -
2 | Dr.P. Alli Rani, Director,
(As CONCOR Nominee)
At the beginning of the year 1 - 1 -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in{ Nil Nil Nil Nil
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc.):
Ceased to be Director w.e.f 04.10.2017 |1 - 1 -
3 | Sh.P.K. Agrawal, Director
{As CONCOR Nominee)
At the beginning of the year 1 - 1 -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in | Nil Nil Nil Nil
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity ete.):
1 - 1 -

V) INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not
due for payment.

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Secured Loans
. Unsecured . Total
excluding Deposits
. Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year - -
3K




i) Principal Amount Nil 3590.00 Nil 3590.00
i) Interest due but not paid Nil 1332.81 Nil 1332.81
iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil
Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 4922.81 Nil 492281
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year ‘
* Addition Nil 175.00 Nil 175.00
* Reduction Nil 70.00 Nil 70.00
Net Change Nil 105.00 Nil 105.00
Indebtedness at the end of'the
financial year )
i) Principal Amount Nil 3695.00 Nil 3695.00
ii) Interest due but not paid Nil 1568.66 ., | Nil 1568.66
iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil - 1 Nil -
Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 5263.66 Nil 5263.66
. VL. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: NIL
SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount
1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17{2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

{c) Profits in licu of salary under
section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option

3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission
. - as % of profit

- others, specify..,

5 Others, please specify
Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors

SN. { Particulars of Name of Directors Total Amount
Remuneration (Rupees in Lakhs)
1 | Independent Directors Shri Sanjeev S. Major Gen.
Shah (Retd.) Raj
Krishan
Malhotra
Fee for attending board 3.60 0.80 4.40
/committee meetings
Commission Nil Nil Nil
Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil
Total (1) 3.60 0.80 4.40
2 | Other Non-Executive”




Directors

Fee for attending board Nil Nil Nil

/committee meetings

Commission Nil Nii Nil

Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil )
“Total (2) Nil Nil Nil 1

Total (B)=(1+2) 3.60 0.80 440

Total Managerial 3.60 0.80 440

Remuneration )

Overall Ceiling as perthe | N.A, N.A. N.A

Act

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN

MD/MANAGER/WTD
SN | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Pgrsonnel
CEQ* Lo CFO* Total

1 Gross salary 27,75,047/- | 13,77,423/- | 33,45,421/- | 74,97,891/-
(a) Salary as per provisions 27,21,844/- | 13,76,795/- | 33,38,295/- | 74,36,934/-
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)} 53,203/- 628/- 7,126/- 60,957/-
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Nil Nil Nil Nil
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

2 | Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil

3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil

4 | Commission Nit Nil Nil Nil
- as % of profit Nil Nil Nil Nil
others, specify... Nil Nil Nil Nil

5 Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total 27,75,047/-  13,77,423/- | 33,45,421/- | 74,97.891/-

* Remuneration paid by CONCOR (Holding Company)

* Remuneration paid by FHEL till 05/09/2017 & thereafter by CONCOR (Holding

Company)
VIL. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES :
Type Section of the | Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,
Companies Description | Penalty / [RD /NCLT/ | ifany (give
Act Punishment/ COURT] Details)
Compounding
fees imposed
A, COMPANY
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding | NIL NIL _ NIL NIL NIL

B. DIRECTORS

Y

L




. Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding | NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding | NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-
Date: 21.08.2018 (V. Kalyana Rama )
Place : New Delhi Chairman
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Kumar Tripathi & Associates

" Company Secretaries

CERTIFICATE

To,

The Members,

Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited,
Concor Bhawan, C-3 Mathura %ad,

. Opp, Apollo Hospital, New Delhi-lLQQ?B,

S -

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Fresh & Healthy
Enterprises Limited for the period ended on 31% March, 2018 as stipulated in the DPE
guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises issued by the
‘Department  of Public Enterprises’, Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises,
Government of India.

“The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance Is the responsibility of the Management.
Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Comipany for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an
audit nor an expression of opinicn on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and information and according to the
explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of
Corpoidte Govemance as stipulated in” the guidelings on corporate governance issued by the
"Departinent of Public Enterprises’ except the appointment of required numbers of Independent
Directors on the Board as per DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs and
consequential non-compliances thereunder.

We further state such compliance is neither an assurance as to further viability of the Company

" nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

Company.
Date: 21/07/2018 - For Kumar T‘fibat L8 sociates
Place: New Dethi Company Secpefarts' =2,

R
E/ 3

TP
] ( AR HOY
7

LA

- N

Partner
M. No.-23673, CP No.- 11372

Office- 23B, Ist Floor, Opposite Satsang Bhawan Shiv Mandir, Chirag Delhi, New Delhi-110017
Contact No.: 011-40513476, +91- 8527087435, Email: ktapcs@gmatl.com
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/ " Kumar Tripathi & Associates

Company Secretaries :

Secretarial Audit Report :
(For the period ended on 31/03/2018) £

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personne!) Rules, 2014]

g
s

Fresh 8K _,_li';z;._Entérpri'ses Limited, '

Concor Bhawan, C-3 Mathura Road, g
Opp. Apollo Hospital, New Dethi-110076,
., We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the

adherence to good corporate practices by Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (hereinafter called
the Company) a wholly owned subsidiary of Container Corporation of India Limited an Indian
Government Company. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
gined: by Hhe-compas s Tifgmation provided by the coripany; its
officers, agents and aut?hdri'zed representatives du'ring the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby

thereon. Based on our verification of

report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period ended on 31/03/2018 complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper board-processes
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinaﬁ:"er_:

. 1. 1 have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (“The Company”) for the period ended on
31/03/2018 according to the provisions of:

I The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder.
. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA") and the Rules made thereunder- Aot

ili, The Déli_GSitories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder- Not Applicable

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the '
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Diféct-nvestment and External Commercial
Borrowings- Not Applicable A

Office- 238, st Floor, Opposite Satsang Bhawan Stiv Mandir; Chirag Deih, New Delhi-110017
Contact No.: 011-40513476, +91- 8527087435, Effiail: ktapcs@gmail.com

ue




Kumar Tripathi & Associates
‘Company Secretaries

V.

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
Tndia Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the Company:
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and o,
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011- Not Applicable '
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992- Not Applicable ™
- .¢. The Securities-and Exchange Board of Indla (Issue of Capital and Disclasure’ Requiraients)
Regulations, 2009- NatApplicable
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 1999- Not Applicable 28
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008- Not Applicable
f, The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client- Aot
Applicable
g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009-
Not Applicable and
h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998- Mot
. Applicatie

vi. Compliance of guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE).
vil. The Agricultural Produce Marketing Act, 1998

viii, Food Safety and Standard of India Act, 2011

ix. Right to Information Act 2005

x. The Legal Metrology Act , 2009

¥, Pollution laws as applicable,

ii. Labour Laws as applicable,
xiii. Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal} Act 2013
xiv. Secretarial Standard Issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review, as per explanations and darifications given to us and representations
i ,Management, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Ruls,
Regulahons, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above, except the appointment of required numbers of .
Independent Directors on the Board as per DPE—gUldeffngs on Corporate Governance for CPSEs and
conseguential non-compliances thereunder. / f,—-' - o ,\\,

Office- 23B, Ist Floor, Opposnte Satsang BhaWawSﬁ{Mandir, Chirag Delhi New Delhl-uool?
Contact No.: 011-40513476, +91- 8527087435, Email: ktapcs@gmall com
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Kumar Tripathi & Associates

Company Secretaries

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agénda were sent at least seven days in advance except in some €ases where consent was taken ' &
from the Directors for the same, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting. -

e
Ma}erity degision is carfied through while the digéénting members’ views are captured and vecorded -
as.pirt of the minutes. |

s
B

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company comQ’__ensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicngble laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines. a

Date: 21/07/2018 : For Kumar Tripathi & Associates
Place: New Delhi

(This report is to be read with our letter of even date which Is annexed as Annexure A and forms an
integral part of this report. }

Office- 238, Ist Floor, Opposlte Satsang Bhawan Shiv Mandir, Chirag Delhi, New Delhi-110017
Contact No.: 011-40513476, +91- 8527087435, Email: ktapcs@gmail.com
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Kumar Tripathi & Associates :
Company Secretaries ° ' '

Annexure A
, %
To,
The Members,
Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited,

Congor Bhawan, C-3- Mathura Road,
'@BD diffoHospttal New Delhi-110076,

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. .

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
- Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and proCess as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure the correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We

believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our

_opinjon.

IR 3

accounts of the cornpany
4. Where ever required we have obtained the management representation about compliance of

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, and
regulations standards is responsibility of the management. Qur examination was limited to
the verification of the procedure on test basis.

6. The secretarial audit report in neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of

the company.
: For Kumar Tripa
Date: 21/07/2018 Company Secr
*
Place: New Dethi

oo

Dee e :
M. No.-23673, CP No.- 11"3?2

Office- 23B, Ist Floor, Opposite Satsang Bhawan Shiv Mandir, Chirag Delhi, New Delhni- -110017
Contact No.: 011-40513476, +91- 8527087435, Emall: ktapm@gmail.com
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fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited

Statement of Batance sheet

As at March 31, 2018

{All a3mounts sre in T lakhs unless othenwise stated)

Particulars Note No. As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 2 3,485,393 4,088.81
{b} Intangible assets 2 0.80 1.35
{c) Financlal assets
[1) Loans s 3 - 9.60
{ii) Other flnanclal assets 4 45.50 45.24
{e} Deferred tax assets (Net) - -
{d} Other ron-current assets 5 25.48 28,12
3.557.71 4,173,412
(2) Current assets
{3) Inventories 6 4202 . 59.83
{b} Financial assets
{i) Trade receivables 7 16340 166.49
{il) Loans 8 0.07 T 525
{iii) Cash and cash equivalents £ 6.87 26.35
{iv) Other bank balances 10 6.52 7.07
{iv) Other financial assets 11 6.20 .40
{c} Cuprent tex assets [Net) 12 29,06 13.34
{d} Other current assets 13 547 5.4
259.61 295.87
Total assets 3,817.32 4.472.99
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity share capital 4 14,586.77 14,566.77
{b} Other equity
Reserves and surplus 15 (16,377.17} {15,333.08}
Total equity {1,810.40} |766.31)
(1} Non-current liabilities
[a] Financial Liabilities
{i) Barrowings - -
{ii) Other financlal llabilities . -
{a) Long-term pravisions 16 7.22 §2.08
{c} Deferred tax llabilities (Net) - .
{d) Other non-current liabifities - -
7.22 B2.02
{2} Current labilities
{a} Financial kzbilities
{i) Borrowings 17 5,263.66 4,922.81
{ii) Trade payables
{a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 18 R A
and small enterprises
{b} Total cutstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and smali enterprises s 15.41 1556
{lii) Other financial liabilities 19 337.08 195,34
{b} Other current hiabillities 20 3.48 6.73
{c} Short-term provisions 21 0.87 16.78
5,620.50 5,157.22
Total (fabllities 562772 5.239.30
Total equity and labllities 3,817.32 447299
The accompanying nates are an integral part of the 1tesz

financlal statements’

As per out report of even date attached
For Anll Ashok & Ascoclates
Chartered Accountant

€A Amit Maheshwari
Partner

M,Ne. S3B665
Date:20.04.2018
Place: New Delhl

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

V. Kalyana Rama
Chairman

Suman Lata
Company Secretary

o

Rahul Mithal M.LArora
Director CEC

Umesh K Behl
Chief Finance CHficer




Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss

For the year ended March 31,2018

(AU amounts are in ¥ 1akhs unless otherwise stated)

particulars Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
" March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
\ Revenue from operations 22 1.24 46.70
Il Other income %o 23 16.77 24.37
ili Total revenue (1 +11) 18.01 71.07
v Expenses
fg) Purchases of traded goods 24 _ - 0.02
{b) Change in inventories 25 i 17.81 -
fc) Direct expenses 26 59.86 282.36
fd) Employee benefits expenses 27 73.60 173,75
fe) Finance costs 28 295.93 26497
{f) Depreciation and amortization expenses 29 503.08 522.13
{g} Other expenses 30 130.23 193.48
Total expenses 1,080.51 1,436.71
V Loss before tax (it - V) (1,062.50) {1,365.64)
VI Tax Expense
{1) Currenttax - -
{2} Deferred Tax - -
Total tax expense - -
VI Loss after tax for the period (V- VI {1,062.50) {1,365.64)
VIl Other comprehensive income
{tems that will not be recycled to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plan, net of income tax 18.41 (7.99)
Total other comprehensive income for the period 18.41 (7.99)
iX Total comprehensive income for the period (Vil + V1) {1,044.09) {1,373.63)
X Loss per equity share:
{1) Basic (3) {0.73) {0.94)
(2) Dituted (3} {0.73) {0.94)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 1052
As per our report of even date attached
For Anil Ashok & Associates tor and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountant
V. Kalyana Rama Rahul Mithal M.L.Arora
CA Amit Maheshwari Chairman Director CEQ
Partner
M.No. 538665
Date:20.04.2018 Suman Lata Umaesh K. Behl
Mace: New Dethi Company Secretary Chief Finance Officer
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited

Statemnent of Changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2018

(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Other equity
Reserves and surplus

. Equity share Securities Retained earnings Total
Particulars capital premium reserve
Balance at March 31, 2016 14566.77 41,33 {14,000.78) 607.32
Profit for the year . . (1,365.64) {1,365.64)
Other comprehensive income for the year - {7.99) (7.99)
Total comprehensive income for the year (1,373.63) {1,373.63)
Balance at March 31, 2017 14,566.77 41.33 (15,374.41) {766.31)
Profit for the year - - {1,062.50) {1,062.50)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 18.41 18.41
Totat comprehensive income for the year - - (1,044.09) {1,044.09)
Balance at March 31, 2018 14,566.77 41.33 (16,418.50) {1,810.40)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 1to 52
As per our report of even date attached
For Anil Ashok & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountant

V. Kalyana Rama Rahul Mithal M.LArora

CA Amit Maheshwari Chairman Director CED
Partner
M.No. 538665
Date; 20.04.2018 Surnan Lata Umesh K, Behl
Place: New Delhi Companty Secretary Chief Finance Officer
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2018
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Notes No. March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
A Cash flow from operating activities:
Wet loss after tax {1,062.50} {1,365.864)
Adjustments for:
Degpreciation and amortisation 503.08 522.13
Interest Income {2.93) {12.97)
interest expense 29593 264.97
Net (Profit)/ loss an sale / disgarding of fixed assets {3.19) 1B.36
Operating profit before working capital changes (270.61) (573.15}
Adj for ch in king capital :
- Decrease in trade payables [0.13) {0.00)
- Decrease ather financial liabitttes 141.74 {10.48)
- Increase in short term provisions (15.91) 274
- Increase/[decrease) in long term provisions (56.45) 522
- Increase in other current fiabilities {3.25) 1.89
+ Decrezse in trade receivabtes .09 36.02
- Decrease in inventortes 17.81 {6.00)
- Decrease in fang term loans 9.60 4.27
- {increase)/decrease in shart term loans 518 117
- Decrease other current financial assets 0.20 0.80
- Increase other non current financial assets {0.26) {D.24)
- Decrease in other current assets {0.33) 1.33
- Decrease in other non current assets 2,64 141
Cash {used in)/generated by operating activities {166.70) 529.02)
- Ihcome taxes {paid)/ refund {5.72) 6.47
Net cash {used in}/generated by operating activities (172.42) {522.55)
8. Cash flow from Investing Activitles:
Purchase of fixed assets - (0.05}
Sale of fixed assets 103.54 15.67
Interest received 3.93 12.57
Net cash generated by investing activities 107.47 28.59
€. Cash flew from Flaancing Activities:
Proceeds from short term barrowings 175.00 445.00
Repayment of short term borrowings {70.00) -
Interest paig |BC.08) {54.30)
Net cash (used in)/generated by firancing activities 44.92 390.70
Net Intrease/{decrease) in cash & cash equivalents {20.03) (103.26!
Cash and cash equival at the beglnning of the vear 33.42 136.68
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9, 10 13.39 33.42
Notes:
Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprise the following:
LCash and tash equivalents comprise:
Cash in hand - -
Balance with scheduled bank in current accounts 6.87 26.35
QOther bank balances comprises:
Deposits having original maturity more than 3 Months and less than 12 months 222 3.03
Bank Balances held as margin money or as security against guarantees 4.30 4.04
13.39 33.42

Non cash transactions;

The company did not enter into any non cash investing and financing activities which are not reflacted in the statement of cash Hows.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finangial statements 1to52

This Is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For Anil Ashok & Associates

Chartered Accountant
V. Kalyana Rama
Chairman

CA Amit Maheshwari

fartmer

M.No. 538665

Date: 20.04.2018 Suman Lata

Place: New Delhi Campany Secretary
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Rahul Mithal
Director

M.LArora
CEQ

Umesh X, Behl

Chief Finance Officer




Fresh and Healthy Enterprise Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Corporate Information

Fresh and Healthy Enterprises Limited (the “Company”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Container
Corporation of India Limited (CONCOR) is engaged in procurement and sale of fruits, creation of
cold storage infrastructure in India and leasing of Controlled Atmosphere (CA) chambers and allied
services, to provide complete cold chain logistics solutions to the various stakeholders in this field.
It is classified as Union Government Company and is registered at Registrar of Companies, Dethi.
The Company was incorporated in 2006 and is a wholly subsidiary company of Container
Corporation of India.

Application of New or Revised Ind AS

At the date of preparation of these financial statements, there were somé amendments issued to
the existing Ind ASs, after the initial notification issued by the MCA. The amendments and the
impact of such amendments on the Company has been summarised as follows: -

Recent accounting amendments:

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
(Amendments) Rules, 2017, which are effective from April 1, 2017. These rules bring in
amendments to Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows’ and Ind AS 102r ‘Share-based payment’,

Amendment to Ind AS 7:

The amendment to Ind AS 7 requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. In addition, the disclosure
requirement in paragraph 44A also applies to changes in financial assets (for example, assets that
hedge liabilities arising from financing activities) if cash flows from those financial assets were, or
future cash flows will be, included in cash flows from financing activities. One way to fulfil the
requirement is by providing a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the
balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities. Where an entity discloses such a
reconciliation, it shall provide sufficient information to enable users of the financial statements to
link items included in the reconciliation to the balance sheet and the statement of cash flows.

The Company is evaluating the reguirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial
statements is being evaluated.

Amendment to Ind AS 2:
The amendment to Ind AS 2 is regarding the classification and measurement of share-based

payment transactions. However Company does not have any share-based payments and
accordingly this amendment is not applicable to the company.

NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
{Ind ASs") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) read with Rule 3
of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Hg




1.2

1.3

1.4

Upto the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of the Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts} Rules,
2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP. These are Company’'s second Ind AS financial
statements. The date of transition to Ind AS is April 1, 2015.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
under the historical cost basis except financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
inception. %y

Property, plant and equipment:

(i) Property, piant and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management, the initial estimate of any decommissioning obligation, if
any, and, for assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use, finance costs, Cost is net of interest on capital advances and duty
credits and is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses. In
respect of assets due for capitalization, where final bills/claims are to be
received/passed, the capitalisation is based on the engineering estimates. Final
adjustments, for costs and depreciation are made retrospectively in the year of
ascertainment of actual cost and finalisation of claim. Items such as spare parts,
stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised in accordance with this
Ind AS 16 when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment.

(i) Provision for stamp duty at the prevailing rate is made by the company at the time of
capitalization of the amount paid for acquisition of land & is capitalised as part of the

cost of L.and.

Depreciation/amortisation:

(iii) Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over its useful life and in the manner
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013.

(iv) Land leases where the lease term is for the significant economic life of the asset are
considered as finance leases. Such leases are included in property plant and
equipment and are deprecated over the lease period. Freehold land or perpetual land
leases are not deprecated. Land leases where the lease term is not for the significant
economic life of land are considered as operating leases and are classified as
prepayments. Such leases are amortized over the lease term.

The estimated usefu] life and deprecation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

{v) An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets: Intangible assets is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Expenditure on computer software, which is not an integral
part of hardware, is capitalised as an intangible asset. The cost of software includes license
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1.5

1.6

1.7

fee and implementation cost and is capitalised in the year of its implementation. Software is
amortized over five years being management's estimate of life of assets over which economic
benefits will be derived. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment lgss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the

asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessmeénts of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted. .

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories:

Inventories are valued at cost or Net Realizable Value (NRV), whichever is lower. Cost
comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventory to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on specific identification
method for fresh fruits and First in First out (FIFO) method for other inventories.

Employee benefits:

(i) Liability for gratuity, leave salary, sick leave and medical reimbursements benefits
payable to employees is provided for on accrual basis using the Projected Accrued
Benefit Method (Projected Unit Credit Method with control period of one year) done by
an independent actuary as at the Balance Sheet date. Defined benefit costs are
categorised as follows:

« service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and
losses on curtailments and settfements);

» netinterest expense or income; and

s remeasurement.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or
loss in the line item ['employee benefits expenses]. Curtailment gains and losses are
accounted for as past service costs,

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the
balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive
income will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit
or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or
asset.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting
from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available

in
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1.9

1.10

in the form- of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the
plans.

Termination benefits are immediately recognised in the statement of profit or loss
account. A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the
entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity
recognises any related restructuring costs,

(ii) Contribution to defined contribution plans such as Provident Fund and Family Pension
Fund are charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss as and when accrued.

(ili) The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid for the
services rendered are recognized as an expense during the period when the
employees render the services.

Revenue recognition:

Revenue from sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discount and volume rebates. Sales are
recognized when the significant risk and reward of ownership of goods are transferred to the
customer and no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realization exists,

Income from automatic sorting and grading through machine and handling income is
recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the contract, provided there is no
significant uncertainty exist regarding the amount of consideration.

Interest income from deposits is recognized on accrual basis. Interest other than deposits is
recognised at the time when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realization
exists. Interest on income tax refunds are accounted for on the finalization of assessments.

Rental income, cooling charges and income from space for sorting packing machine/
strapping machine is recognized on accrual basis.

Claims/counter-claims/penalties/awards:

Claims/counter-claims/penalties/awards are accounted for in the year of its settlement,
Taxes on income:

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the yvear. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor




the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax the vear

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehenswe income or directly in
equity respectively.

1.11 Borrowing cost =

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of the
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

1.12 Provisions, contingent liabilities & contingent assets:

(i

(i)

(i)

Provisions:

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation {legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the company will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount

of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Contingent liabilities:

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it Is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate
of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent assets:

Centingent assets are not recognized in the accounts. However they are disclosed
when the possible right to receive exists.




1.13

1.14

1.15

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted EPS is computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity
equivalent shares outstanding during the period except where the result would be anti-
dilutive.

"

Cash and Cash Equivale?it

For the purpose of presentation in the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

-

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantiatly
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

(i) The Company as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at
the amount of the Company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Company's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely
to increase in line with expected general Inflation to compensate for the
Company'’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in
the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(ii} The Company as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the
Company at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to
the lessor is included in the Company balance sheet as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of
the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Company's
general policy on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured
solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
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1.16

1.17

1.18

lessor"s_, expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in
the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability, The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

.

Segment reporting

The Companies’s segmental reporting is in accordance with Ind AS 108 Operating Segments,
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the board of directors, which is responsible for allocating résources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, and has been identified as the chief operating
decision maker. -

¥

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments,

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

The company’s financial assets represents assets whose contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding and these assets are held In a business model to
hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows at maturity consequentially in
accordance with Ind AS 109 these assets are carried at amortized cost using effective interest
rate. :

The Company’s financial liabilities are not held for trading and are also carried at amortized
cost using effective interest rate,

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset and financial liabilities are de-recognised when they are discharged.
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts

and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously,

Impairment of financial asset

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets.
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1.19

Trade receivable' )

As a practical expedient the Company has adopted ‘simplified approach’ using the provision
matrix method for recognition of expected loss on trade receivables. The provision matrix is
based on historical default rate observed over the expected life of the trade receivable and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. Further receivables
are segmented for this analysis where the credit risk characteristics of the receivables are
similar.

Other financial assets =

Impairment loss on other financial assets is recognised based on the difference between the
present value of the expected cash fiows and carrying value,

w

Key sources of uncertainties

Useful life of Property plant and Equipment and Intangible assets: As described at 1.3 and
1.4 above, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, piant and equipment
and Intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. The estimate of useful life may be
different on account of change in business environment and change in technology which
could have a material impact on the financial statement.
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Eresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{All amounts are in X lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note -3 : Loans

Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2018 tMarch 31, 2017

Secured, Considered Good - at amortised cost
voans to employees including interest accrued

Total

Note - 4 ; Other financial assets

Particulars

- 9.60

- 9.60

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good
- Govt, authorities

Total

Note - 5 ; Other non current assets

. Particulars

Deferred employee cost
Prepaid rent
Prepayments - leasehold land

Total

Note - 6 : Inventory

Particulars

45.50 45,24
45.50 45.24
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
2.04
5.37 5.76
20,11 20.32
25.48 28.12
As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Inventories (lower of cost and net realisable value)
Stock-in-trade

Stores and spares

Tatal

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year was
The mode of valuation of inventories “NRV/cost price whichever is less.

. Trade Receivables

Financial asset
Note - 7 : Trade Receivables

Particutars

42.02 59.83

42,02 59.83

NIL {for the year ended March 31, 2017: 0.02 lakhs}

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Total

163.40 166.49




To tackle the credit default, Company has now adopted a policy of supplying material/ services against advance payment ar against Bank
guarantee. The Company has filed the legal cases in respect of some of the customers and expects a favourable outcome in ali of the legal

cases.

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision
matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information. The expected
credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates as given In the provision matrix. The provision
matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows.

ein Expected Credit loss{%
Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Outstanding for period less than six months - -
Qutstanding for period exceeding than six months - -
Age of receivables
As at As at
Particuiars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Outstanding for period less than six months 1.93 -
Outstanding for period exceeding than six months 16147 166.49
Total 163.40 166.49
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the year 0 1.41
Addition in expected credit loss allowance 0 0
Amaunt written off 0 -1.41
Balance at the end of the year 0 0
Details of the Company's largest customers who represent more than 5% of the total batance of trade receivables:
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Mahaluxmi Cold Storage 15.23 15.23
R K Brothers 26.64 26.64
GAPL 85.73 85.73
Tarun Kumar 12,65 12.65
KFC, Dhalli 6.78 11.78
The Company has filed the legal cases in respect of the following custommers:

. Asat As at
Parties March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
a) Cases where Arbitration/Legal case/Appeal has been filed
(i) M/s GAPL 85.73 85.73
(i} KFC Dhalli 6.78 11.78
(iiiy5anjeev Kumar 0.30 0.30
{iv)Tarun Kumar 12.65 12.65
(v) Ram Chandra & Sons 7.33 7.33
{(vi)Mahataxmi 15,23 15.23

26.64 26.64

(vii)R.K.Brothers

No provision is respect of the above mentioned receivables has been made in the baoks as Management expects a favourable outcome in
all of the above legal cases.




Note - 8 : Loans

Particulars

Secured, Considered good - at amortised cost
Loans to employees including interest accrued
Loans to Employees (Secured, Considered Good)
Interest receivable

Total

Note - 9 ; Cash and cash egivalents

Particulars

=

ey

Balance with scheduled bank in current accounts
Cash in hand
Total

Note - 10 : Other bank balances

Particulars

Deposits having original maturity more than 3 Months and less than 12 months

Bank Balances held as margin money or security against guarantees
Total

Note - 11 : Other financial assets

Particulars

security deposits
Unsecured, considered good
- Govt. authorities

- Others

Claims recoverable

COthers

Total

Note - 12 : Current tax assets {Net)

Particulars

Advance income tax/TDS (Net of provisions)
Total

Current Assets
Non financial assets
Note - 13 : Other current assets

Particulars

Advances to employees

Advances to related party - CONCOR Air
GST {Input}

Deferred employee cost

Interast accrued but not due

Prepaid rent

Prepayments - leasehold land

Prepaid expenses/ insurance

Total

A9

As at As at
March 31,2018 WMarch 31, 2017
0.07 5.25
0.07 5.09
- 0.16
0.07 5.25
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
6.87 26.35
6.87 26.35
fis at Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
2.22 303
4.30 4,04
6.52 7.07
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
043 0.43
0.04 0.04
5.54 5.54
0.19 0.39
6.20 6.40
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
29.06 23.34
29.06 23.34
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
0.22 0.21
0 0.22
3.66
0 0.83
0.01 -
0.38 0.38
021 2.16
0.99 1.34
5.47 5.14



Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited

Notes foemilng part of the financial statements

{All smounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)
Nate 14 : Share caphtal

Particulars

Authorised :

20,00,00,000 Equity share @ T10/- per share (P.¥. 15,00,00,000 Equity Shares of

210/ per Shars}

1ssued, subscribed and paid up:
14,56,67,21 Fully paid equity shares of 10 each as at March 31, 2018:
( P.Y. 14,56,67,721 Fully paid equity shares of %10 each} :

Total .

Fully paid equity shares, which have a par value of 710, carry one vote per share and carry a right to dividends.

Fully paid equlty shares {in Lakhs}
Particulars

Balance at March 31,2016
Changes duting the year 2016-17
Balance as at March 31,2017
changes during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2018

Details of shares hetd by the holding company, its subsidarles and asseclates
Particulars

Container Corporation of india Limited, the halding company

Detalis of shares held by each shareholder holtding mare than 5% shares
Particulars

Fully pail equity shares {in Lakis)
Contalner Corporation of India Limited, the hatding company

Asat Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
20,000.00 15,000.00
20,000.00 15,000.00
14,568.77 14,586.77
14,566.77 14,566.77
Number of shares Number of shares
1,456.68 1456.68
1,456.68 1,456.63
1,456.68 1,456.68
As at
March 31, 2018 As at March 31,2017
1,456.68 1,456.68

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31,2017
Number of shares

Number of shares held

1,456.68 1,456.68

% holding of equity % holding of equity

shares shares
Container Corporation of India Limited, the holding ¢company 100% 100%
Note 15 ; Reserves and surplus
As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Secutities premium reserves 41.33 41,33
Retalned Eamings {16,418.50) (15,374,41)
(16,377.17) {15,333.08)
Note - 15.1 ; Securities premium reserves
: As at As at
Particulars March 33, 2018 Mareh 31, 2017
Balance at the beginning of the year 41.33 41.33
Movement during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 41,33 41.33
rity lum reserve Is ded for the ditf ! the par value of 3 company’s sharas and the total arnount company has received

far the shares issued. The Cormpany can use the balance of the accaunt for the purposes as specified in the provisions of Campanies Act, which
includes to pay off equity expenses, which in¢lude underwriter fees. It can also be used for the issuance of bonus shares and for casts or expenses

related to this issuance.

Note - 15.2 : Retained earnings

Particulars

Balance at the beglnning of the year
Lass duting tha year

Other comprehensive incoma arising from remeasurement of defined benefit obligation

Balarnee at the end of the year

Note 16 : Long term perovisions
Particulars

Provision for amployee benefits
Total

Note 17 : Borrawlngs
Particutars

Unsecured - at amortised cost

Loans from retated party

Interest accrued on leans from related party
Total

As at Asat

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
{15,374.41) {14,000.78)
[1,062.50) {1,365.64}
18.41 {7.98)
[16,418.50) (15,374.41}
Asat Asat

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
7.22 32.08

T1.22 22,08

As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
3,695.00 3,590.00
1,568.66 1,332.81
5,263.66 /4,922,831
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yofb g arrang 4
The company has taken loans from Container Corporation of India Lirmited, the holding company. This foan is unsecizred. Tha term of repayment of
term kians s statad below:

As at March, 31,2018
Particulars Amount outstanding Terms of repayment Rate of interest
B.51% [6.58% w.e.f
loantranche 2 3,000,00 Somuary 1, 2018}
190.00 B.51% (6.5E% wie .
Loan tranche 3 Bullet repayment by the January £, 2018)
450,00 end of next year * B.51% [6.58% w.ad
Loan tranche 4 Fanuary 1, 20181
55.00 B51% (6.58% w.e.f
Loan trenche 5 January 1, 20181
As at March 31, 2017: ng-
Partlculars Amaunt out ding Terms of repayment Rate of interest
9.74% [B51% w.el
Loan trancha 2 }

" ) 3,000.00 Bullet repayment by the October 1, 2015}
Loan tranche 3 190,000  end of next yesr * 851%
loan tranche 4 ’ 400.00 451%

As at March 31, 2016:

Particulars Amount outstanding Termns of rapayment  Rate of interest
Loan trancha 2 3,000.00| Bullet repayment by the 9.70%
Loan tranche 3 145.00}  endof nextyear ¥ 451%
As at March 31, 2015

P I A t 0 ding Terms of repayment_ Rate of interest
Loan tratche 1 . 932.67| Bullet repeyment by the 9.74%
Loan trancha 2 3357.10) endofnucyesr® 231%

* As per the contractual terms, loans fram ratated party are gayable by the end of next year, However, campany takes approval from related party
frarm the cue date for deferment of these loan generally far the periad of further one year.

Note 18 : Trade payables

Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro snerprises and small enterprises .
- Tota) outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and small enterprises 15.41 15.56
Total 1541 15.56

* i, respuct of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, ne amount is pending as at the Balance sheet date.

Trade payables includes payables in respect of pu hases, direct exp and other exp The ge credit periad on purchases/ direct
axperses is 30 days, However Campany generally pays the outstanding in 15-20 dfays. No Interest [s ¢harged on the trade payables due for
payment. The Compoany has a practice to ensure that ail payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit tarms.

Note 19 : Other current finandal liabilities

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
At amortised cost
Advance/deposits from parties 60.53 48,77
Earnest money Jeposit 751 8.48
Other payable to related party 79.34 84.29
Qthers 189.7¢ 53.80
Total 33708 195.34
Note 20 : Other curvent llabllities
Asat Asat
Particuiars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Statutory dues payable 3.48 6.73
Othars - -
Total 3.48 673
Note 21: Short term proviskns
Asat Asat
articulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Provision for employee benefits 0.87 16.78
Tatal 0.87 16.78
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Eresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in T fakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note - 22 : Revenue from operations

For the year ended March 31, fFor the year ended
Particulars 2018 March 31, 2017
Sale of cartons 1.24 -
Cooling charges - 35.00
income from strapping mchine - 0.15
tncome from space for crates N - 0.10
Plastic crates rental - 0.01
Handling income - 11.44
Total 1.24 46.70
Note - 23 : Other income !
For the year ended March 31, For the year ended
Particulars 2018 March 31, 2017
Interest on bank deposits 1.57 3.84
Interest on loans to employees 1.63 1.10
Interest on security deposit given 0.27 0.24
Other interest income 0.06 7.79
Excess provision written back 4.04 -
Other non-operating income 8.80 11.40
Total 16.77 24.37

Note - 24 : Purchase of traded geods

For the year ended March 31,

For the year ended

Particulars 2018 March 31, 2017
Stores and spares - 0.02.
Total - 0.02
Note - 25 : Changes in inventories
For the year ended March 31, For the year ended
Particulars 2018 March 31, 2017
Opening stock
Stock-in-trade -
Stores and spares 59.83 59.83
59.83 59.83
Closing stock
Stock-in-trade -
Stores and spares 42.02 59.83
42,02 59.83
Total 17.81 -
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Direct Expenses
Note - 26 : Direct expenses

For the year ended March 31, For the year ended
Particulars 2018 March 31, 2017
CA store maintenance 25.13 119.01
Handling expenses (Rai} 0.30 13.07
Power and fuel 33.36 69.36
Testing expenses/ charges Jconsumable goods 0.12 0.12
performance award 0.95 -
Lease rent - Plastic Bins - 80.33
Incentive expenses . - 0.47
Total 59.86 282.36

Note - 27 : Employee benefits expense

For the year ended March 31,

For the year ended

Particulars 2018 March 31, 2017
Salary, allowances and other employee benefits 63.18 147.66
Contribution to CPF and FPF 6.44 12.68
Employees welfare and medical 1.09 337
Gratuity 2.89 5.04
Total 73.60 173.75
Note - 28 : Financial cost

For the year ended March 31, For the year ended
Particulars 2018 March 31, 2017
Interest on loans from related party 295.93 264.97
Total 205.93 264.97
Note - 29 : Depraciation and amortisation

for the year ended March 31, For the year ended
Particulars 2018 March 31, 2017
Depreciation and amortisation 503.08 522.13
Total 503.08 522.13

£2




Note - 30 : Other expenses

For the year ended March 31, For the year ended
Particulars 2018 March 31, 2017
Printing and stationery expense 0.08 1.45
Travelling and conveyance 152 6.22
Travelling and conveyance - Director 0.08 0.19
Rent office space/ Rai land and license fee* 19.01 20.50
Office/ CA store Up keeping expenses 3.09 7.40
Repairs and maintenance -

- Plant and machinery 3.18 19.36
Security expenses . 24.40 13.9¢
Office vehicle/ car hire charges v 0.14 5.81
Business development ' 0.08 0.10
Postage, telephone and internet 1.60 3.23
Bank charges 0.01 0.18
Stamp duty charges 7.50 -
Legal and professional charges 12.54 20.67
insurance premium 3.03 3.25
Advertisement - 15.68
Auditors remuneration -

- Statutory audit fee 1.08 0.87
- Tax audit fee - 0.37
Service Charge 0.09 -
Service tax expense 2.07 3.86
Swachh bharat cess 0.07 0.14
Krishi kalyan cess 0.07 0.12
Property tax Haryana 1.63 -
Trade licence 1.09 1.06
Rates & taxes 192

ROC Fee 37.50

Bad debts - 2.67
Loss on sale of fixed assets - 18.36
Settlement in respect of customer claim - discount - 34.90
Interest expense - 4,60
Waived/Write Off 0.02 0.33
Miscellaneous expenses 3.43 8.17
Total 130.23 193.48

* Includes land given on lease by HSIIDC Limited, Rai for 30 years from 26.03.2003, further expandable for a period of
. 99 years for which no lease premium has been paid. Lease rent Is @ ¥1.50 per 5q. mtr. per month for 66,400 sg. mtr.
area for first 15 years and thereafter will be fixed mutually. Includes land given on lease by H.P. Govt. for lease money
charged at 10% of turrent circle rates to the tune of ¥5,85,626/- per annum subject to revision/enhancement every
five years of the existing lease amount as per provisions of Rule, 8{i) & (ii} of H.P. Lease Rules, 2013 for 99 years w.e.f,

01.08.2014.




Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Alfamounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)
31. Income taxes

31.1 Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/03/2017
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year . - -
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year - -
i

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit/{loss) as follows:

toul Year ended Year ended
Particulars : 31/03/2018 31/03/2017
Profit/{Loss) before tax (1,062.50) {1,365.64)

i * = * = 4

(r;c:;ne tax credit calculated (at 25% *103% 25.75 (C.Y.)/30%* 103%=30.00% (273.59) {421.98)
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 12.01 0.66
Income tax not recognised on losses {261.58) (421.32)

Income tax expense recognised In profit or loss - -

The tax rate used for the reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of 25% plus cess of 3% on total income tax payable by corporate entities
in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law for F.Y. 2017-18.

65




Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Umited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
[Allamaunts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)
32. Deferred tax balances

The following is the analysls of deferred tax asseis.ftliabllilies) presented in the batance sheet:

Particulars

Deferred tax liabitities

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets over and above deferred tax liability not recognized*
Net deferred tax

Asat Asat

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
{637.49) {710.70)
5,709.61 5,516.50
{5072.12} {4,805.80

* The Company has carried out the Deferred tax compurtation in accondance with the ind AS 12 - Income taxes. Management is of the viaw that it is not reasgnable certain o realise deferred $ax assets in the near future. In
the absenca of the reasanable certalnity of readisabllity of deferred tawcggiets, the deferred tox assets has been recognised anly to the extent of deferred tax liabilfty,

2)17-2018
Particutars Openingbatonce  FecOBNised in profit or In :t!mr R directly In Closing balance
Deferred tax {liabilitieshfassets in retation to; ”
Excess depreciation as per Income tax Act, 1961, over R
depreciation as per books (708.32) 847 (539.85)
Loan to employees {0.40| - - - {6.40)
Remeasurement of defined bensfit plan (1.98 - 4.74 - - .76
Deferrod tax ifability {710.70 68.47 4.74 . (637.49)
Expenditurg covered by section 438 of LT, Act, 1961 760 [23.37) - [15.77]
Share issue expenses - . - N
Ad) for isation of paid on | hold land 1,92 . - - 1.92
Discounting of security deposit given 1.05 0.0¢ - - 1.09
Brought forward lasses and unabsorbed depraciation 5,505.93 216.44 - - 5,722.37
Defervad tax asset 5,516.50 19311 - - 570961
Defarred tax assets over and above deferred tax liabitity not recognized 14,8035.80) [261.58) {8.78) . 15,072,212}
Net deferred tax - . - - .
2015-2017
Particutars Opening batance Recognisad i profit or Retognised In othar Recognised directly In Closing batance
Deferred tax {Ilabiltties}/assets In velation to:
Exewss depreciation as per Income tax Act, 1961, cver
depreciation as per books {778.88) 70.56 (r08.32)
Loan to employees {0.43) 0.03 . - [.40)
Remeasurement of defined bensfit plan 0.49 - {2.47) - {1.98)
Delerred tax liabikity {778.82)} 70.59 {240 - [730.70)
Expenditure covered by section 438 of I.T, Act, 1961 3.30 4.30 - 7.60
Share Hsue expenses 109 - - {3.08} -
Adjustment for of p paid on b hok land 1.32 0.60 - - 192
Discounting of secerity deposit given 1.01 0.04 - - 105
Brought forward losses and unabsorived depreciation 5,160.14 245.79 - - 5,505.93
Defarred tax asset 5,168.56 350.73 - {3.09) 3,516.50
Deferred tax assets gver and above deferred tax liabjility not recognized (4,390.04) {421.32) 2.47 3.09 £4,805.80)
Net deferred tax - - - - -
32.1 Unrecognlsed deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses
Particutars Unused tax losses will For the year ended For the year ended
explre In March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Deductibe temporary differances and unirsed tax losses for which no deferred tax
assets have been recognised are atiributable to the foltowing:
- tax losses AJY 2009-10 AfY 2H6-17 - 181,487,746.00
- tax lasses ASY 2010-11 ASY 2017-13 138,055,149.00 138,055,149.00
~tax logses AJY 2011-12 AfY 2018-19 29,989,230.00 29,989,230.00
- tax Josses AfY 2012-13 AMY 2019-20 148,536,281.00 148,536,281.00
- tax losses A/Y 2013-14 ASY 2020-21 110,628,378.00 110,628,378.00
-tax losses AJY 2014-15 AV 2021-22 400,313,389.00 400,313,389.00
- tax losses AJY 2015-16 AfY 2022-23 131,436,910.00 131,436,910.00
- tax losses AJY 2016-17 AfY 2623.24 241,010,822.00 241,010,822.00
- tax lossas AfY 2017-18 AfY 2024-25 112,123,169.00
Total

1,312,093,328.00

1,381,457,%05.00




Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Al! amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

33. Segment information

The company is dealing in logistics of fresh fruits. All the activities of the company are related to this business. Company has
operations in India only. Information reported to the chief operating decision maker {CODM) for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses only on logistics of fresh fruits.

Segment revenue represents revenue generated from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in the current year.
The Company operates in only one geography i.e. India.

Revenue from major products and services

The following is are the details of revenue from its major products and services:
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017

Sale of fresh fruits - a -

Information about major customers
!81)uded in revenues arising from sales of fresh fruits of ¥ Nil {2016-2017: NIL) and revenues of approximately Z NIL (2016-17: T

which arose from sales to the Company's largest customer. No other single customers contributed 10% or more to the
company's revenue for both 2017-18 and 2016-17.

34, Earning per share

As at . As at
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Basic earning/ (loss) per share {0.73) {0.94)

There are no dilutive instruments issued by the company.

Basic earning per share
The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows.

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Profit for the year attributable to owners of
1,365.64
Company {1,062.50) ( :
Earnings used in the calculation of basic
earnings per share (1,062.50) (1,365.64)
Weighted average number of equity shares for
the purposes of basic earnings per share 1,456.68 1,456.68

35. Impact of changes in accounting policies
There are no changes in the accounting policies which had impact on the amounts reported for earning per share.
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{AH amounts are in T lakhs uness otherwise stated)

37. Financial Instruments

{1) Capital management
The company reviews the capital structure as and when need arises. As part of this review, the cost of capita! and the risks associated with each class of

capital are considered. Based on this, the Company determines the amount of capital reguired for annual and long-term operating plans. The funding
requirements are met through equity and short term borrowings. The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of Net debt to equity ratio
and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Company. The company isn't subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

E‘b"’
The Company is relying on the support of its holding company for meeting the fong-term and short-term goals obligations. Further, the Company has
already evaluated various business prospects based on which Management is of the view that there is no doubt about the viability of the Company and
the Company will be in 2 good condition in the coming years without doubting its ability to continue as a going concern,

For the purpose of capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other reserves attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Net debt long-term and short-term borrowings including interest accrued as reduced by cash and cash equivalents.

o

37.1(i} Gearing ratio

. The gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Debt 5,263.66 T a,92281
Cash and bank balances (13.39) (33.42)
Net debt 5,250.27 4,889.39
Equity {1,810.40) (766.31}
Net debt to equity ratio -290% -638%
{it) Categories of financia! instruments
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Financial assets carried at amortized cost*
Cash and bank balances 13.39 33.42
Trade recelvables 163.40 166.49
Loans 0.07 14.85
Qther Financial assets 51.70 51.64
Financial liabiiities carried at amortized cost*
Trade payables 15.41 15.56
Borrowings 5,263.66 4,922.81
Other financial fiabilities 337.08 195.34

* There are no financial assets or financial liabilities carried at fair value through other comprehensive income{FVTOCI) or fair value through profit or
loss{FVTPL) during FY 16-17 and 17-18.

{iii} Financlal risk management objectives

The financial risks relating to the operations of the Company are managed by analyzing exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include
market risk [including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, Further, there has been no change to the Company's
exposure to market risks or the manner in which these risks are being managed and measured. However company's exposure to the market risk does not
arises in respect of the following:

a) The company Is not subject to transactions denominated in foreign currencies;

b) The Company has availed borrowings at a fixed rate of interest from its holding company;

¢) The company does not hold any investments.

T




(iv) Credit risk management
To tackfe the credit default, Company has now adopted a policy of supplying materialf services against advance payment or against Bank guarantee, The
Company has filed the legal cases in respect of some of the customers and expects a favourable cutcome in all of the legal cases,

Company has bank balances held with a reputed and creditworthy banking Institution resulting to limited credit risk from the counterparties.

(v}Liquidity risk management
The Company manages liguidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the

maturity prefiles of financial assets and liabifities.

LS

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at March 31, 2018;

Particulars Carrying Duein Due in Duein Due in Due after Total contracted
amount istyear  2nd year 3rd year 3rd to 5th 5th year cash flows
vear
Einancial Liabilities
Borrowings and interest there  5,263.66  5,482.48 - - - - IS 5,482.48
Trade payables 15.41 15.41 - - - - 15.41
Other financial liabilities 337.08 337.08 - - - - 337.08

. The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at March 31, 2017;

Particulars Carrying Due In Due in Due in Due in Due after Total contracted
amount Istyear  2nd year 3rd year 3rd to 5th Sth year cash flows
year
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings and interest there  4,922.81  5,228.32 - - - - 5,228.32
Trade payables 15.56 15.56 - - - - 15.56
Other financial liabilities 195.34 195.34 - - - - 165.34

The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be earned on those
assets,

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial assets including estimated interest receipts as at 31 March 2018:

Particulars Carrying upto 1 1-2 year 2-3 year 3-5 year More than 5 Total Contracted
amount year year Cash flows
Trade recgivables 163.40 163.40 - B - - 163.40
Loans . -
Current assets 0.07 0.07 - - - - 0.07
Non-current assets - - - - - - -
Other financial assets -
Current assets 6.20 6.20 . - - - 6.20
Nan-turrent assets 45.50 - - - - 54.78 54.78
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial assets including estimated interest receipts as at 31 March 2017:
Particulars Carrying upto 1 1-2 year 2-3 year 3-5 year More than § Total Contracted
amount year year _ Cash flows
Trade receivables 166.49 166.49 - - - - 166.49
Loans -
Current assets 5.25 5.87 - - - - 5.87
Non-current assets 9.60 - 3.88 3.46 3.27 - 10.61
Other financial assets -
Current assets 6.40 6.40 - - - - 6.40
Non-current assets 45.24 - - - - 54.78 54,78
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{vi} Financing facilities

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Unsecured loan facilities from related party

amount used 3,695.00 3,590.00

amount unused 105.00 50.00

Total 3,800.00 3,640.00

{vii} Fair value measurements %,

No financial assets and financial fiabilities of the company are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period.

{vill} Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at falr value (but fair valtue disclosures are required)

As at Asat .
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Fairvalue  Carrying Carrying
Particulars hierarchy  amount Fair value amount Fair value o
Financial assets
Trade receivables* Level 2 163.40 163.40 166.49 166.49
Loans
Current assets* Level 2 0.07 0.07 5.25 5.25
. Non-current assets Level 2 - - 9.60 11.02
Other financial assets
Current assets® Level 2 6.20 6.20 6.40 6.40
Non-current assets Lavel 2 45,50 45.50 45,24 45.24
Financial Liabilities
Current Liabilities*
Borrowings including Level 2 5,263.66 5263.66 4,922.81 4,922.81
interast accrued
Trade payables Level 2 15.41 15.41 15.56 15,56
Other financial liabilities Level 2 337.08 337.08 195.34 155.34

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabitities included in the level 2 categories above have been determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of
counterparties.

* there is no significant change in the fair value of these current financial assets and current financial liabilities, therefore fair value is equal to its carrying
value,
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Fresh 8 Healthy Enterprises Limited
Notes forming part of the financdial statements
(Al amounts are in T lakhs untess otherwise stated)

38. Operating lease arrangements
a) Asalessee

Leasing arrangements

The Company has entered into operating leases arrangements for office premises and accommodation provided to staffs with different
lease terms that varies from case to case. The company does not have an option to purchase the leased land at the expiry of the lease
periods. The Company does not have anyWan-cancellable operating lease as on the each reporting date,

Payments recognised as an expense

Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017
Particulars Office Accomodation Total Office Accomodation Total
Premises provided to staff Premises provided to staff
Minimum lease payments 19.01 - 19.01 20.50 - 20.50
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Al amounts are in T lakhs unfess otherwise stated)

39, Statement of Transactions with refated parties

Holding Company
Container Corporation of India Limited

Felfow subsidiary
CONCOR Air Limited

Part Time Directors
Sh. V Kalyana Rama, Chairman Yy
Dr. P. Alli Rani, Director (ceased to be director w.e.f. 04.10.2017)
5h. P. X. Agrawal, Director
Sh. Sanjay Swarup, Director
Smt. Sangeeta Ramrakhyani, Director (w.e.f, 23.01.2018)

Independent Directors
Sh. Sanjeev S. Shah
Maj. Gen. {Retd.) Raj Krishan Malhotra {ceased to be director on actount of sudden dermise on 16.06.2017) w

Key Management Personnel
5h. Mohan Lal Arora, CEQ
Sh, Umesh K. Behl, CFQ
. Ms. Suman Lata, Company Secretary
The following table summarizes related-party transactions and balances with the holding company for the year ended and as on reporting date:

Transactions during the year

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Unsecured loan taken 175.00 445,00
Unsecured loan refunded 70.00 -
Unsecured loan converted into equity . .
Interest on [oan 295.92 264.97
Interest Paid 30.48 25.34
TDS deducted on interest on loan 29.5% 28.96
Lease rental of plastic bins - 80.33
Lease rental of plastic bins paid - 27.71
TDS deducted on lease rental - in
Sale of damaged CONCOR Bins - 038
Payment of CONCOR Bins (recovered from customers) - 0.42
Administrative expenses {Advertisement) - 009
' Travelling expenses 0.66 0.66
Boarding & Lodging 0.08
Regional pravident fund commissioner 0.50 0.27
Reimbursement (salary, perks & Allowances) 7120
TDS on Reimbursement of salary by CONCOR 6.62
Loans, atdvances & interest recovered {Employees) 13.31 -
. Balances at the year end
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Other payables 28.42 28.42
Other payables for lease rent of plastic bins 50.91 S0.91
Loans payables 3,695.00 3,590.00
Interest accrued on loans 1,568.66 1,332.81
Balances to be recelved at the year end
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Reimbursement {salary, perks & Allowances) 1.93- -

The following table summarizes refated party balances with the fellow subsidiary {CONCOR Alr) as on reporting date:

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Balances at the year end

Advance to CONCOR Air - 0.22

There are no transacations and balances outstanding with KMPs.
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39.1 Loans from related parties

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 reh 7

Unsecured

Loans from Container Corparation of india Limited 3,695.00 3,590.00

Interest accrued on loans 1,568.66 1,332.81

The Company has taken working capital loan from its holding company Container Corporation of Indla {Concor) at the following terms: .

Particulars Amount Rate of Interest Repayable
As at March 31, 2018
i 8.51% {6.58% w.ef
L he 2 .
oan trand 3,000.00 Jan 1, 2018)
Bullet repayment by the end
190.00 18.51% {6.58% w.e.f :;a:m yea:‘
Loan tranche 3 Jan 1, 2018)
450.00 |8.51% (6,58% w.e.f
Loan tranche 4 Jan 1, 2018)
Qut of Rs.1.25 Cr. an amount
8.51% (6.58% w.e.f
Loan tranche 5 125.00 (6.58% W.e.f  }of Rs.0.70 Lakhs has been
Jan 1, 2018) ;
refunded
As 2t March 31, 2017
9.74% (8.51% w.e.f
tranche 2 X
Loan tranche 3,000.00 October 1, 2015) Bullet repayment by the end
Loan tranche 3 190,00 {8.51% of next year*
Loan tranche 4 400.00 |8.51%
As at March 31, 2016
Loan tranche 2 3,000.00 |2.74% Buliet repayment by the end
Loan tranche 3 14500 |2.51% of next year*
As at March 31, 2015
Loan tranche 1 932.67 [9.74% Bullet repayment by the end
Loan tranche 2 3,357.10 |9.31% of next year*

* As per the contractual terms, loans from reiated party are payable by the end of next year. However, company takes approval from related party from the due date
for deferment of these loan generally for the period of further one year,

39,2 Sitting fees paid to independent directors for the year is ¥4.40 lakhs (previous year ¥8.40 Lakhs)

39.3 Compensation of key management personnel {Ms. Suman Lata} *:

Particulars - For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Short-term benefits

Salary as per provisions contained in section 17{1} of the Income tax Act, 1961 5.46 12.60

Value of perquisites under section 17{2} of the Income tax Act, 1961 0.00 0.04
Post-employment benefits - 0.46
Other long-term benefits - 1.48
Share-based payments - -
Termination benefits - -

5.46 14,58

* Compensation ta Ms. Suman Lata, key management personnel paid by the holding company from Sept,2017 onwards.
* Compensation to other key management personnel (i.e. CEO & CFO) are paid by the holding company

39.4 Terms and conditions
All the transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates. All outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable in cash. No

guarantees have been glven or received, No expense has been recognised in the current or prior years for bad or doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by
related party.
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4117, 1% Floor,

Naya Bazar, Dellii-110006

@hone : 011-23962062, 23923496
Fax :011-23911438

E-mail : roc.anilashok@gmailcom

. Anil Ashok &I Associates

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO
THE MEMBERS OF
M/s FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED

1. Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of FRESH &
HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet

. as at 31st March, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss ( including other Comprehensive income
), the statement of Cash Flows and the statement of change in equity for the year ended and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after
referred to as © Standalone Ind AS financial statement”).

2. Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind As) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read
with relevant Rules issued there under.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with

. the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recotds, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Lo
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3. Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone Ind AS financial statements based
on our audit,

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made there under and the Order under Section 143(11) of the Act.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section

143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS
. financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

. 4, Opinion.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at
31" March 2018, and its financial performance including other comprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. -
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we

give in the Annexure B, a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the
Order.

ii) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(2) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books ;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the statement of Cash Flow and the
statement of change in equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

(d) In our opinion, the company has accumulated losses and its net worth has been
substantially/fully eroded. The Company has incurred 2 net Loss / net Cash loss during the
current year and previous year(s) and, the Company current liabilities exceeded its current
assets as at the balance sheet date.

However, the company’s Board of Directors have approved a re-engineering plan which is
expected to result reasonable profits in future years.

(e) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2018
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “
Annexure A”, ,

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rute 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements- Refer Note 7 to the Standalone Ind AS.financial
statements;
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ii.  the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii.  there has been no delay in transferring amounts | required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

4.1 Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to the following matter in the Notes to the financial statements.
. A) Note 7 to the financial statement in respect of sundry debtors there is uncertainty related to
: the outcome of the lawsuit filed against various sundry debtors.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters.

Compliance of directions issued under section 143 (5) of Companies Act, 2013 issued by the
office of Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

Observations on the directions issued by the office of Comptroller and Auditor General of
India U/s 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 have been annexed by way of Amnexure C of

this Report,
For Anil Ashok & Assoctates
Chartered Accountanty
(Ca Amit Maheshwari) -
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date:20™ April 2018 M. No. : 538665

A
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Annezure “A” to the Auditor’s Report of Fresh and Healthy Enterprises Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Fresh and Healthy
Enterprises Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
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assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

&4
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. .

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial chortmg
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Anil Ashok & Associates
Chartered Accountants..-

Place: New Delhi
Date:20" April 2018 M. No. : 538665
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The Annexure-B referred to in paragraph 6(i) of Our Report of even date to the members of FRESH &
HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the company for
the year ended 31% March, 2018.

We report that:

1. A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by
which all the fixed assets are verified annually. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed upon such verification during the year.

(¢) The title deeds of immovable properties, which are held in the name of company as at the
balance sheet date, are held in the name of company,

2. (a) As explained to us, Inventory has been physically verified by the management as at 31
March 2018.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business.

(¢) In our opinion and on the basis of our examination of the records, the Company is
generally maintaining proper records of its inventories. No material discrepancy was noticed
on physical verification of stocks by the management as compared to book records.

3. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act.

4. The company has not advanced any loan or given any guarantee or provided any security or
made any investment covered under section 185 and 186 of Companies Act ,2013.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public as defined in section 73 and 76
of the Companies Act 2013

6. The company is not required to maintain cost records under subsection (1) of Section 148 of
the Act,

7. (a}) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Income tax, Service tax, Goods & Service Tax, vai@ept-»Eugd,
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Employees State Insurance, and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March
2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income
tax or Sales Tax or Service tax or Goods & Service Tax or duties of excise or value added
tax or cess and other material statutory dues which have not been deposited by the Company
on account of any disputes.

(c) There was no amount which was due for transfer to Investor education and protection
fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and
rules made there under.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to the financial institutions, banks
and Government and dues to debenture holders.

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instrument ) and Term loans during the year hence clause 9 of CARO 2016 is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Company
by its officer or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

No Managerial remuneration has been paid during the year in confravention to the provision
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

. The Company is not a Nidhi Company, Consequently , requirements of clause (xii) of

paragraph 3 of the CARO 2016 are not applicable.

_To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given tous, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting Standards.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations

given to us, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
share or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review, consequently,
requirements of clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the CARO 2016 are not applicable.
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15. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him,

16. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Anil Ashok & Associates
(Ca Amit Ma shiwar) .
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date:20™ April 2018 M. No. : 538665
B
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Annexure “C” to the Auditor’s Report of Fresh and Healthy Enterprises Limited

Report as per Sub direction u/s 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
( In Pursuance of the direction from the year 2015-16 onwards)

S.No.

Directions

QObservations

I

Whether the company has clear title/lease deeds for
freehold and leasehold land respectively? If not
please state the area of frechold and leasehold land
for which title/lease deeds are not available.

Yes, however in respect of Leasehold land
at Rai, Sonipat lease deed is in the name of
holding  Company i.e.  Container
Corporation of India Limited.

inventories lying with third parties & assels
received as gift/grant(s) from Government or other
authorities.

2 Whether there are any cases of waiver/ write off of | The detail of waiver/ write off of debts by
debts/loans/interest etc.,if yes, the reasons there for | FHEL is as under:-

and the amount involved. 1. Staff (Concor) for Sale Rs 1,608/-

Total Rs 1,608/~

3 Whether proper records are maintained for | There is no inventory of the company lying

with third parties & in respect of assets
received from National Horticultural Board
the required details as per the nature & size
of business are maintained.

Place: New Delhi
Date:20™ April 2018
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N THE FINANCIAL

C@WTRQLLER AND AUMTOR GENERAL OF INDIA
: FHE. ' ', 2013 O
£p FOR THE YEAR

The preparation of financial statemenﬂt‘s of FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED for
the period ended 3L March 2018 in accordance with- the financial reporting framework
preseribedw under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the
company. The Statutory Auditors appoinied’ by the Comptroler and Auditor General of India
under Section 139 (5) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial
. statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the
standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of tE\e Act. This is ctated to have been

done by them vide theis Audit Report dated 20.04.2018.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted 2 supplementary

audit under section 143(6)(a) of the Act of the financial statements of FRESH & HEALTHY
! grch 2648. This supplememary audit has

> O L :
dependently W1thout accesc; 1o the wonkmg papers of the statutory auditors and

been camed out in

is hmlt;d primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records. On the basis of my audit nothing significant has
come to my knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon of supplement {0 statutory

auditors’” report.

" forand on the pehalf of the
Comptrotler & Auditor General of India

(B. Y

Place: New Delhi Principal Darecmr of Audit
Dated: 2gMiuly, 2018 Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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